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Chairman’s statement
FEHRESE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Litu Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”), | am pleased to present to
you the annual results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2021, the gross domestic product (GDP) of the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) increased by 8.1% compared
to last year, higher than the increase of 2.2% in 2020 and the
growth target of 6% at the beginning of the year. In 2021, the
GDP per capita of the PRC reached RMB80,976, equivalent to
approximately US$12,551 on the then average exchange rate
over the year.

In 2021, China’s tobacco industry’s sales volumes continued
to grow steadily and cigarettes sold increased in volume and
value by 0.55% and 5.21% respectively, representing a higher
scale and pace of sales volume over the past few years.
However, given the decrease in tendering price under the
mandatory tendering policy in the cigarette industry and the
increase in raw material prices, the Group was subject to
considerable operating pressure under intensifying industry
competition. Total revenue of the Group decreased by 13.5%
from approximately HK$1,339.4 million in 2020 to
approximately HK$1,158.9 million in 2021, and gross profit
margin also decreased from 19.8% in 2020 to 13.9% in 2021.
In respect of the downstream tendering policy, during the year,
the Group has already established a specific team to plan and
organise the tendering among the subsidiaries. At the same
time, the Group has strengthened production cost control,
improved production efficiency and enhanced inventory
management, in order to cope with the challenges to
profitability.

Since December 2020 and in 2021, the unsuccessful bid in
the tender of some customers for the orders in the coming
years had and is expected to have an adverse financial impact
on the overall revenue and profitability of the Group in 2021
and the coming years. The financial position and performance
of the Group were affected in different aspects, including the
decrease in revenue arising from printing and manufacturing of
cigarette packages business and impairment losses on
goodwill arising from the relevant cash generating units.
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Chairman’s statement
FEHRESE

EARNINGS AND DIVIDEND

Profit attributable to owners of the Company decreased by
3.2% from approximately HK$8.9 million in 2020 to
approximately HK$8.6 million in 2021. Basic earnings per
share was approximately HKO.6 cent (2020: approximately
HKO.6 cent).

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: HK10
cents per share).

PROSPECTS

While the Chinese economy continues to recover steadily, the
global economic outlook remains uncertain due to sporadic
regional COVID-19 outbreaks in the PRC, rising global inflation,
intensifying competition between the United States and the
PRC on various fronts and the ongoing war between Russia
and Ukraine, all of which may have an adverse effect on the
Chinese economy and the Group’s operating environment in
2022.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to rely on cigarette
packaging as a solid foundation for the Group’s development
and seek to further develop new businesses such as sales of
RFID products. The Group will continue to increase its
participation in tenders, while actively expanding into other
packaging markets, and will continue to reduce the pressure
of decreasing gross profit through measures such as cost
control, efficiency boosting and resource consolidation.

The Group’s corporate mission is to continue to develop ways
to improve financial performance, provide growth drivers for
the Group and broaden revenue streams within acceptable
risk levels. On 26 January 2022, the Group completed the
acquisition of Eagle Swift Limited, whose only significant asset
is a property in Hong Kong. The Board considers that the
acquisition represents a good investment opportunity for the
Company to invest in the Hong Kong property market and the
future rental income from the property will provide stable
income for the Group while at the same time the Group may
benefit from the long term appreciation in value of the property.

LITU HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

EFNERBRE
RARBEBEANEEENB S _FTFHH
8,900,000 T A 3.2% E -~ —FH YK
8,600,000 7T © TIREARBH A & 0.6 &1L
ZEZTF - HR06HEN) -

EEelTEE8EzE_ZE-_—F+=A4
—t+—BIFERNRERE(ZZE-_FF :
BFHA10BL) -

Al

PREGESRIFERBTRE BERBEY
COVID-19&Z B EFR R B4 - 2FBIR
FHB - b0 £ ER B 7E % @ 5 A RS0
Bl AMESHEOEFRE  2IREE
RIS ITEARA - A — T - —F MR E
EERAEENGERBERTHEE -

REFK  AEBRKEEICEEREE/N
SEBRNBZBERN  WSFE—PERH
15 (NHEST SRR EM) - AEEASHEE
EM2EEE  AeERnREMEEN
M5 RAEEEBRAES - REURERE
IRE A SRR EENTRNES -

AEBMNDEFEGAEERATMNESHHERR
HaE - ARSEIRPIERE ) - WA
ZRBKENERRS KR - RZT ==

—AZ+RB  REE TR Eagle Swift
Limited - EM— BB EERTER SN —EY
X -FEFERA WESFHEDAQRTEER
BEBMEMISHIRERE  ZVEEENR
R WAG AR EBREREWRA - FRF
REBNKAIZZZWEREAENGTRE °



Chairman’s statement
FEHRESE

The Company will also continue to explore the possibility of
other investments or diversification into other profitable
businesses in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole, with a view to achieving sustainable
growth, improving profitability and ultimately maximising
returns for shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Group, | would also like to take this
opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to all the staff of
the Group for their efforts and contributions, and all our
shareholders and partners for their support.

Chen Xiao Liang
Chairman
31 March 2022
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Management discussion and analysis

SRR

REVENUE

The Group recorded a total revenue of approximately
HK$1,158.9 million in 2021, representing a decrease of 13.5%
as compared to approximately HK$1,339.4 million in 2020.
The revenue was generated from three business segments: (i)
the printing and manufacturing of cigarette packages and
related materials of approximately HK$1,040.0 million (2020:
HK$1,227.7 million), (i) manufacturing of laminated papers of
approximately HK$13.5 million (2020: HK35.5 million), and (i)
sales of RFID products of approximately HK$105.4 million
(2020: HK$76.2 million). The revenue from the printing and
manufacturing of cigarette packages and related materials
segment accounted for approximately 89.7% of the total
revenue for 2021 (2020: 91.7%). The decrease in total revenue
was mainly attributable to the decrease in business volume of
printing and manufacturing of cigarette packages and related
materials as a result of the failure of one of the subsidiaries of
the Company to bid its tender for 2021 and 2022 orders from
some of its major customers. However, the appreciation of
RMB against HKD of roughly 6.8% comparing with the
corresponding period of 2020 has partially offset such
downside effect.

GROSS PROFIT

Gross profit decreased by 39.2% from approximately
HK$265.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately HK$161.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2021, primarily due to the decrease in revenue and
increase in raw material price. Despite the implementation of
the cost reduction and efficiency measures during the year
under review, the gross profit margin still decreased from
19.8% for the year ended 31 December 2020 to 13.9% for the
year ended 31 December 2021. The average selling price was
also subject to pressure induced by the ongoing mandatory
tendering system.

OTHER INCOME

Other income decreased by 11.4% from approximately
HK$47.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately HK$41.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 due to the decrease in various government
grants of approximately HK$13.2 million and the increase in
processing fee income of approximately HK$5.9 million.
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Management discussion and analysis

SR B

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

Other net gains and losses decreased by 39.6% from
approximately HK$173.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 to approximately HK$105.0 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021, which was mainly attributable
to the decrease in impairment losses on goodwill by
approximately HK$79.5 million from HK$176.0 million to
HK$96.5 million of which approximately HK$93.3 million was
recognised for Shenzhen Kecai Printing Co., Limited, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company established
in the PRC, as its recoverable amount was less than the
carrying value as at 31 December 2021.

The Group has also made provision of HK$21,200,000 in
respect of an arbitration proceeding with an ex-staff, the
details of which are disclosed in note 43 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

The selling and distribution expenses decreased by 36.5%
from approximately HK$41.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 to approximately HK$26.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021 which was primarily attributable to
reduction of sales expenses and staff costs.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES AND OTHER
EXPENSES

The administrative expenses and other expenses increased by
29.0% from approximately HK$88.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 to approximately HK$113.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

The increase was mainly attributable to an one-off
compensation for staff in 2021 and the absence of one-off
preferential treatment in relation to the COVID-19 pandemic in
2020.
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Management discussion and analysis

SRR

FINANCE COSTS

The finance costs decreased by 30.3% from approximately
HK$20.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately HK$14.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2021.

The decrease was mainly due to decrease in the average bank
borrowings rate and average bank borrowings balance in
2021. The Group has implemented plans to improve its bank
loan portfolio by the replacement of existing facilities with new
bank loan with lower interest rate.

SHARE OF PROFITS OF ASSOCIATES

The share of profits of associates increased by 18.2% from
approximately HK$59.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 to approximately HK$70.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021 due to improvement in profitability
of the Group’s major associate namely Changde Gold Roc
Printing Co., Ltd. (“Changde Gold Roc”). Changde Gold Roc
is principally engaged in the provision of cigarette printing
package services. The Group beneficially owns
RMB50,546,120 of its paid up capital, representing 31% of
the total paid up capital of RMB163,052,000. The profit of
Changde Gold Roc increased by 17.6% from approximately
HK$192.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately HK$226.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2021. The increase in net profit of our associates
was mainly due to an increase in revenue by 17.2% as a result
of successful tenders by Changde Gold Roc. Changde Gold
Roc also strengthened its production cost control and
improved its production efficiency. The net asset value of
Changde Gold Roc as at 31 December 2021 was
approximately HK$1,442.2 million (2020: approximately
HK$1,425.3 million). The carrying amount of the Group’s
interest in Changde Gold Roc was approximately HK$455.9
million as at 31 December 2021 (2020: approximately
HK$450.4 million). During the year under review, the Group
received dividend of approximately HK$76.8 million (2020:
HK$58.5 million) from Changde Gold Roc. The Group holds
the investment in Changde Gold Roc for stable earnings and
dividend income in view of its stable business with the local
customers.

Save for Changde Gold Roc, there were no significant

investments held by the Group with a value of 5% or more of
the Group’s total assets as at 31 December 2021.
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Management discussion and analysis

SR B

TAXATION

The effective tax rate of the Group decreased from 80.5% in
2020 to 34.8% in 2021. Such decrease was primarily due to
the decrease in recognition of the impairment losses on goodwill
of HK$79.5 million, which is not deductible for tax purpose.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

As a result of the foregoing, the profit attributable to the
owners of the Company decreased by 3.2% from
approximately HK$8.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 to approximately HK$8.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2021.

OTHER PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
The following table sets forth other performance indicators of
the Group as at the dates or for the years indicated:
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As at or for the year ended
31 December
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BZZBLEE

2021 2020

—E-—-F ZTTHF

Current Ratio (Note 1) mENEL & (FFE1) 1.5 times 1.5 times
1.5F 1.5

Quick Ratio (Note 2) BN (fFE2) 1.4 times 1.4 times
1.41% 1.4

Return on equity (Note 3) AR A B3 2 (M95E3) 0.3% 0.3%
Return on total assets (Note 4) HBEEPRRE (H5E4) 0.2% 0.2%

Notes:

(1) Current ratio is calculated based on total current assets of the Group
divided by total current liabilities of the Group as at the end of the
respective year.

2 Quick ratio is calculated based on total current assets of the Group less
inventories of the Group divided by total current liabilities of the Group
as at the end of the respective year.

(©)) Return on equity is calculated by dividing profit attributable to owners of
the Company for the year by the arithmetic mean of the opening and
closing balance of total equity attributable to owners of the Company.

(4) Return on total assets is calculated by dividing profit attributable to
owners of the Company for the year by the arithmetic mean of the
opening and closing balance of total assets of the Group.

GEE

(1) RBLEDIRBEASERPEERERANEER
BFEERORBBEGEAERSL -

@ EPLXTIREAKERPDEERERANEET
ERAEERESFERNRE A BEBIESL -

@  BRAEBETGRFALABEE ARG DGR
NAGER AR EEAENRI R REHNE
FHEFAESS -

@)  BEERBERIDRFARABEE ARMEENR
AEEEERENSY RREHROEN TI9E

HEEE -

202153 HEERBRAF]

11



12

Management discussion and analysis

SRR

Current ratio and quick ratio

The Group’s current ratio and quick ratio as at 31 December
2021 remained relatively stable at 1.5 times (2020: 1.5 times)
and 1.4 times (2020: 1.4 times), respectively.

Return on equity and return on total assets

The Group’s return on equity remained at 0.3% in 2020 and
2021 and the Group’s return on total assets remained at 0.2%
in 2020 and 2021, as there was no material fluctuation in the
profit attributable to owners of the Company for 2021 as
compared to that of 2020.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group’s financial position remains solid and the Group
possessed sufficient cash to meet its commitments and
working capital requirements. As at 31 December 2021, the
Group had net current assets of approximately HK$398.1
million (2020: approximately HK$392.2 million) of which cash
and cash equivalents were approximately HK$440.4 million
(2020: approximately HK$315.4 million) and were denominated
in RMB, US$ and HK$ as at 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had outstanding bank
borrowings of approximately HK$342.4 million (2020:
approximately HK$411.2 million) which shall be repaid within 1
year. The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2021 was 12.8%
(2020: 14.8%), which is calculated by dividing the total bank
borrowings by the total equity. No financial instruments were
used for hedging purposes, nor were there any foreign
currency net investments hedged by current borrowings and/
or other hedging instruments during the year.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, assets with gross carrying amounts
of approximately HK$23.3 million (31 December 2020:
HK$14.5 million) were pledged to banks in respect of bank
borrowings granted to the Group.

LITU HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

MEILERRRE LR
RZEBZ—F+ZA=+—H  F~&EERE
LR KRB RS R FAEEREN 1.5
(ZEZZF 5B RAR(ZEZTF -
1.41%) o

BRAEREREEEBHE

AEENRARBER-_Z_TFER_F
TFERFR03%  AEEMEEE DLW
RKAR B _ZFR_FB_—FHHR
0.2% @ DEHR-ZE-—FWARAEE A
FEEENE =T — DFEFLL W MEAIE

RBESTRELRER

AEENMBIRAERFBRE  TABERER
CUMEEAEREBESHTE - NZF
——$+—H:+—H Kﬁlmﬁ@éﬁ
wzmom&%@ E¢ﬁ%&ﬁ @E
B #7440,400,000/8 ;t( = & = fi )
315,400,000 7T) * YR =ZZT=-—F+=H
=t+—BUAR®E . ZET KRBT E-

R-ZZE-_—F+-_A=+—H " A£ENX
EZR1T 15 B #9342,400,000/8 T (- T —
T 1 49411,200,000/8 ) + AR —F RN
BE RZTE-—F+=-A=+—H0 &8f&
LEEB128% (ZZEZFF : 14.8%) * &R
TEEBERERBETESL - FR - #
ﬂﬁ%bﬁﬁ BT B/E¥NHRAE - TNEE(ILARD
HAE R RS E R T AR R sNEE H 5
}xéf

BEEIKH
RZEZ—F+ZA=+—H REBEY
£23,300,0008 (Z T =ZFF+ = A
=+—H : 14,500,000/ 7T) HEEBD IR
FAEERITEELG R TR



Management discussion and analysis

SR B

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2021.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had capital commitment
amounted to approximately HK$269.2 million (31 December
2020: approximately HK$76.4 million) in respect of the
acquisition of a subsidiary and property, plant and equipment
contracted for but not provided in the consolidated financial
statements.

TREASURY POLICY

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management
approach towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a
healthy liquidity position throughout the year of 2021. The
Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by performing
ongoing credit assessments and evaluations of the financial
status of its existing customers from time to time. To manage
liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors the Group’s liquidity
position to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group’s
assets, liabilities and other commitments can meet its funding
requirements from time to time.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES, AND FUTURE PLANS FOR
MATERIALS INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL
ASSETS

Save for Changde Gold Roc, the particulars of which are
disclosed in the above section headed “Share of profits of
associates”, and as disclosed below, there were no significant
investments held, and no material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures by the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2021.
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Management discussion and analysis

SRR

On 21 October 2021, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Mr. Cai Xiao Ming, David, a
controlling shareholder of the Company interested in
approximately 57.5% of the issued share capital of the
Company and hence a connected person of the Company
within the meaning of the Listing Rules, in relation to the
acquisition by the Group of the entire issued share capital of
Eagle Swift Limited and all obligations, liabilities and debts
owing or incurred by Eagle Swift Limited to Mr. Cai Xiao Ming
David and his associates for an aggregate cash consideration
of HK$233,000,000. The only significant asset of Eagle Swift
Limited is a property located in Hong Kong. All conditions
precedent as stated in the sale and purchase agreement were
fulfilled and completion took place on 26 January 2022. After
completion, Eagle Swift Limited has become a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

Save as disclosed in this report, there was no plan authorised
by the Board for other material investments or additions of
capital assets at the date of this report.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 978 employees
(2020: 1,150). The total remuneration cost incurred by the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 was
approximately HK$155.5 million (2020: approximately
HK$172.3 million). The Group’s remuneration packages are
generally structured with reference to market terms and
individual merits. The Group participates in a defined
contribution retirement benefits scheme under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees in
Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ base salaries. The Group also made
contributions to provident funds, elderly insurance, medical
insurance, unemployment insurance and work-related injury
insurance in accordance with the applicable laws and
regulations in the PRC.
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Report of the directors
EEEREE

The Directors are pleased to present their report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

Following the approval of the proposed change of company
name by the shareholders by way of special resolution at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 15
November 2021, the Certificate of Incorporation on Change of
Name was issued by the Registrar of Companies in the
Cayman lIslands on 19 November 2021, certifying the change
in the English name of the Company from “Brilliant Circle
Holdings International Limited” to “Litu Holdings Limited” and
the dual foreign name of the Company from “ E B2 A% H A
PR~ Al”to“) B = Bk B BR A A" with effect from 19
November 2021.

The certificate of registration of alteration of name of registered
non-Hong Kong company was issued by the Registrar of
Companies in Hong Kong on 20 December 2021 confirming
the registration of the new name of the Company in Hong
Kong under Part 16 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of the
Company are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021 and the future development of the Group’s
business is set out in the section headed “Chairman’s
Statement” on pages 5 to 7 of this annual report. Financial and
business performance analysis is disclosed in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 8 to
14. The principal risks and uncertainties affecting the Group’s
results and business can be found in notes 4, 38 to 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Report of the directors
EEERESE

The PRC cigarette industry is closely monitored and controlled
by the PRC government and our customers are concentrated
on a limited number of state-owned cigarette manufacturers.
The Group’s success depends on the support from key
stakeholders which comprise shareholders, regulators,
customers, employees, local communities and business
partners etc. and we have maintained good and strong
business relationship with our customers through joint venture
and other co-operations. During the year ended 31 December
2021 and up to the date of this annual report, we have
complied with all the relevant rules, laws and regulations in the
PRC that have a significant impact on the Group. Further
details about the environmental and social responsibility will be
published in separate report to be uploaded on the websites
of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 56 to 57. The
Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: HK10 cents per
share).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for approximately 56.3% of the Group’s
turnover and sales to the Group’s largest customer was
approximately 31.5% of the Group’s total revenue. During the
year, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 31.4% of the
Group’s total purchases, and the purchases attributable to the
Group’s largest supplier was approximately 10.8% of the
Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors, their close associates (within the
meaning of the Listing Rules) or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued share capital) had interests in any of the
Group’s five largest customers or suppliers during the year.
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Report of the directors
EEEREE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note
35 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

At 31 December 2021, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to approximately HK$6,299.7 million.
Under the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium of the Company is distributable to the shareholders
of the Company provided that immediately following the date
on which the distribution or dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company shall be able to pay its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business. Details of the
movements in reserves of the Group and the Company are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available
to its shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
shares.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results of the Group for the last
five financial years and of its consolidated assets and liabilities
as at the end of the last five financial years is set out on pages
214 to 215.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 31 December 2021.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 4 March 2009, the shareholders of the Company had
approved and adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) which was expired on 3 March 2019.

No option under the Share Option Scheme has been granted
by the Board and there was no outstanding option.

ARRANGEMENT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Scheme disclosed above, at no
time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at the date of this
report are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made charitable and other

donations amounting to HK$0.016 million (2020: HK$2.9
million).
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Report of the directors
EEEREE

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group participates in a provident fund scheme as defined
in the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
Chapter 485 of the laws of Hong Kong (the “MPF Scheme”).
The MPF Scheme was a defined contribution scheme and the
assets of the MPF Scheme were managed by a trustee.

The MPF Scheme is available to all employees aged 18 to 64
and with at least 60 days of service under the employment of
the Group in Hong Kong. Contributions were made by the
Group at 5% based on the staff’s relevant income. The
maximum relevant income for contribution purpose is
HK$30,000 per month. Staff members were entitled to 100%
of the Group’s contributions together with accrued returns
irrespective of their length of service with the Group, but the
benefits were required by law to be preserved until the
retirement age of 65. No forfeited contributions are available to
offset future employers’ contributions under the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries established in
the PRC are members of a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute certain percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and wages to the central pension scheme to
fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal government
undertakes to assume the retirement benefits obligations of all
existing and future retired employees of these subsidiaries.
The only obligation of these subsidiaries with respect to the
central pension scheme are to meet the required contributions
under the scheme.

The Group’s cost for the schemes charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to
approximately HK$11.1 million (2020: HK$1.4 million).
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DIRECTORS =
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report REARBEEAREHHNEENT ¢
were:
Executive Directors: HITEDSE
Mr. Chen Xiao Liang BRIZ R 4
(Chairman and re-designated as Chief Executive Officer (X R-E-—_F—A=-+—8H
on 21 January 2022) FERTTEARE,)
Mr. Qin Song /YN
(Vice-Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, B FEFHRITHAEZ, -
resigned on 21 January 2022) RZE-Z—F—A=+—HET)
Mr. Huang Wanru mEEWNEE
Ms. Zheng Jinghui EEFEgt
(resigned on 16 July 2021) (RZZE=Z—F+EA+/NBEE)
Mr. Jiang Xiang Yu BrEmLE
(appointed on 16 July 2021) (RZZE=—FtA+BEEZMF)
Non-Executive Director: FEHITES :
Ms. Li Li TR L
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BAEHITES
Mr. Lam Ying Hung, Andy MEREE
Mr. Lui Tin Nang BREESE
Mr. Siu Man Ho, Simon BMYREE

According to article 84(1) of the Articles of Association of the REAR A FIAELSRMAFE84MNIE - =
Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall H 7 —EEEBRAANRATREBE A SHER
retire from office by rotation at the annual general meeting of  {f + HfERE A ERERET - BIEAQT
the Company but shall then be eligible for re-election. 4 =RAMBIEQ) G EAHESS
According to article 83(3) of the Articles of Association of the Z{EAEMEHETHRNEEEETIEHES
Company, any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual E&HAQ T ERREAE AL - HERA]
vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of the A& FERET o

Company after his/her appointment and be subject to re-

election at such meeting.
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Report of the directors
EEEREE

Details of the Directors subject to rotation and re-election are
contained in the circular despatched together with this annual
report.

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”), the Board currently comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, representing more than one-third of the
Board. Pursuant to paragraph 12B of Appendix 16 of the
Listing Rules, each of the independent non-executive Directors
has confirmed by annual confirmation that he has complied
with the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers that all three
independent non-executive Directors are independent under
these independence criteria and are capable to effectively
exercise independent judgement.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out on pages 43 to 46.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Ms. Li Li has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for an initial term of three years commencing from
22 July 2021, and will continue thereafter until terminated by
not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either
party. Each of Mr. Lam Ying Hung, Andy, Mr. Lui Tin Nang and
Mr. Siu Man Ho, Simon has renewed their appointment for a
fixed term of three years commencing from 30 March 2021.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation.
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DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION PURSUANT
TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE HONG KONG
LISTING RULES

Following the resignation of Mr. Qin Song, the former executive
Director, vice chairman, chief executive officer of the Company,
Mr. Chen Xiao Liang, an executive Director and the chairman
of the Board, has been re-designated as the chief executive
officer of the Company with effect from 21 January 2022.

With effect from 21 January 2022, Mr. Qin Song also ceased
to be a member of the nomination committee of the Company
and Mr. Huang Wanru, an executive Director, was appointed
as a member of the nomination committee of the Company in
place of Mr. Qin Song.

The emolument of Mr. Huang Wanru, an executive Director,
under his service contract entered into with the Company, was
increased from RMB434,460 per year to RMB591,500 per
year with effect from 1 September 2021.

Save for the information disclosed above, there is no other
information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
Details of the related party transactions entered into during the
year were disclosed in note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements in which purchase of printing and packing
machineries was continuing connected transaction within the
meaning of the Listing Rules, details of which are disclosed
under the paragraph headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” below. Save as the transactions
aforementioned, no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance in relation to the Group’s business between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries or in which a Director, an
entity connected with a Director or the controlling shareholder
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year, and there was no contract of significance for the
provision of services to the Group by the controlling
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates, has
engaged in any business that competes or may compete with
the business of the Group, or has any other conflict of interest
with the Group during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Group were entered into or existed during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to the applicable laws, every Director and other
officers of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified by
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them
may incur in the execution and discharge of his or her duties
or in relation thereto pursuant to the Company’s Articles of
Association. Such provisions were in force during the course
of the financial year ended 31 December 2021 and remained
in force as of the date of this report.

The Group has also taken out and maintained liability
insurance for Directors and officers throughout the year.
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Report of the directors
EEERESE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2021, the following Directors or the chief
executives of the Company had or were deemed to have
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (“SFO”)) (i)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provision of the SFO); or
(i) which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein; or (i) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model
Code”) contained in the Listing Rules:

EERFTETHRAEREAQAFTRH
MBS EZENRG  HEROIES
MR KR

RZZBZ—F+_A=+—8  KREUT
EEATBITHRABRARR] R EAAREE
(EERBAREMESTEEZ LG ED
([EZH RS G EXVER) Bt - 18R
R FESFT - A IR BEA () RIFE
75 LB ARG XVELSE 7 M8 D HB A K& AN
NAEAIRBR AN ERIAR (BRRIEES
EHEHRIZF R EEREFREREE
MR SRR ) ¢ Bk (i) IRIRRE F5 R B (5B
55 352 fER7H R0 A\ RX 16k P il B R 1 A0 2 0%
BHARBELETRBME LT ARE
FETEF R ZNEESTRI([1F2ESTA])
GARRE MR SORE

The Company P NN
Number of Approximate
shares/ percentage
underlying of issued
Name of Director Capacity shares held Position share capital
Frise,/ HEBRITRAE
BEEpg 51 HERGEE #R BABEI
Mr. Qin Song Beneficial owner 15,321,062 Long 0.98%
WIS EREAA IS
Mr. Huang Wanru Beneficial owner 1,735,204 Long 0.11%
BEBEWMEAE EREEA 5o
Ms. Li Li Interest of controlled corporation 250,551,964 Long 15.98%
FHRIR LT Rt EE #E R IS
Mr. Jiang Xiang Yu Beneficial owner 2,000,000 Long 0.13%

BrEmLE EalAA
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Report of the directors
EEEREE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS

So far as is known to the Directors and chief executives of the
Company, as at 31 December 2021, the following persons (not
being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had, or
were deemed to have, interest or a short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2

TERROERR HKE

BARABEREBARABHM K2
——F+=A= -8 UFALQEER
AFMEELEETRAR) AAL AR
SRR (H P I LR BB RIS R
S GEHIB XV BB 2 R 35 HEXARAR
ABBOBSIAR :

and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Number of Approximate
shares/ percentage of
underlying issued share
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held Position capital
FrisRen,/ HEBRITRAE
BRRER 47 HEROHBE #®=E BABEI
Mr. Cai Xiao Ming, David Interest of controlled 901,456,892 Long 57.50%
corporation
ERARLE Rt EEE S )
Profitcharm Limited Beneficial owner 274,325,278 Long 17.50%
BlZmARARA ERBEBA )
Sinorise International Limited Beneficial owner 627,131,614 Long 40.00%
RERRAR AR ERBEBA )
Masterwork Group Co., Ltd. Interest of controlled 250,651,964 Long 15.98%
corporation
RERKHUBREERNBRDF REHEEER 55)
Masterwork Machinery (H.K.) Limited Beneficial owner 250,551,964 Long 15.98%
&k (F8)BRAT i3/ Z=UN 5o}
Tianjin Dehou Investment Interest of controlled 103,555,231 Long 6.60%
Management Partnership corporation
(Limited Partnership)
Tianjin Dehou Investment ZEHEE RS e

Management Partnership
(Limited Partnership)

202153 HEERBRAF]
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Report of the directors
EEERESE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save for the “Purchase of printing and packing machineries”
and “Lease payments” during the year as shown in note 42(a)
to the consolidated financial statements which constituted
exempted continuing connected transactions of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, all other related party
transactions as shown in note 42 are not continuing connected
transactions within the meaning of the Listing Rules.

EQUITY FUND RAISING

There was no equity fund raising by the Company during the
year, nor were there any proceeds brought forward from any
issue of equity securities made in previous financial years.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
section set out on pages 28 to 42.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the
date of this report, there is sufficient public float of not less
than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under
the Listing Rules.

DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 13.21 OF THE
LISTING RULES

As at 31 December 2021, there were revolving loan facilities
available to the Group from several banks in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$360 million. Under the terms of these
facilities (the availability of which are generally subject to banks’
periodic review), the Company has undertaken, among other
matters, that Mr. Cai Xiao Ming, David shall maintain at least
50% beneficial shareholding interest in or remain as the single
largest shareholder of the Company at all times during the life
of the above banking facilities (the “Undertaking”). The
breach of such Undertaking may result in the loan becoming
immediately due and repayable.
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Report of the directors
EEEREE

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2020 were audited by
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”). Deloitte resigned as
auditor of the Company on 16 July 2021, and Mazars CPA
Limited, Certified Public Accountants, was appointed as
auditor of the Company on 17 August 2021 to fill the vacancy
arising from the resignation of Deloitte and audited the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to
re-appoint Messrs. Mazars CPA Limited as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
Litu Holdings Limited

Chen Xiao Liang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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OVERVIEW

The Directors recognise the importance of incorporating
elements of good corporate governance in the management
structures and internal control procedures of the Group so as
to achieve effective accountability.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code
(the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. For
the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has
complied in general with the Code, except code provisions
A.6.7 and E.1.2 of the Code, as Mr. Lui Tin Nang (the
chairman of audit committee of the Company and an
independent non-executive director) was unable to attend the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 11 June 2021
due to his other business engagement.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the standard for securities
transactions by Directors. The Company has made specific
enquiries of all the Directors and all the Directors confirmed
that they have complied with the required standards set out in
the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions for the year ended 31 December 2021.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board takes responsibility to oversee all major matters of
the Company, including the formulation and approval of overall
business strategies, internal control and risk management
systems, and monitoring the performance of the senior
management. The management is responsible for the daily
operations of the Group under the leadership of the Chief
Executive Officer. The Directors have the responsibility to act
objectively in the interests of the Company.
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As at 31 December 2021, the Board comprised eight
Directors, including four executive Directors namely Mr. Chen
Xiao Liang, Mr. Qin Song, Mr. Huang Wanru and Mr. Jiang
Xiang Yu, one non-executive Director namely Ms. Li Li, and
three independent non-executive Directors namely Mr. Lam
Ying Hung, Andy, Mr. Lui Tin Nang and Mr. Siu Man Ho,
Simon. There is no financial, business, family or other material
or relevant relationship between any of the Directors. The
names and biographical details of the Directors are set out in
the section entitled “Profile of Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report.

In compliance of Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, the Board
currently comprises three independent non-executive Directors
representing more than one-third of the Board. Pursuant to
paragraph 12B of Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules, each of
the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed by
annual confirmation that he has complied with the
independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Directors consider that all three independent non-
executive Directors are independent under these
independence criteria and are capable to effectively exercise
independent judgement. Amongst the three independent non-
executive Directors, both Mr. Lam Ying Hung, Andy and Mr.
Lui Tin Nang have the appropriate professional qualifications
and accounting and related financial management expertise
required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to the Board
committees including the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) (collectively, the “Board Committees”). Further
details of these committees are set out below.
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BOARD MEETINGS

Seven Board meetings were held during the year ended 31
December 2021. Ad-hoc meetings will also be convened if
necessary to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operation and financial performance of the Group. Notice of
Board meeting was sent to all Directors at least 14 days prior
to a regular board meeting. Reasonable notices will be given
to the Directors for ad-hoc board meetings. Directors may
participate either in person or through electronic means of
communications.

All relevant materials were sent to all the Directors relating to
the matters brought before the meetings. All the Directors
have been provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties, and, upon reasonable request, the Directors will be
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses. All Directors will
have the opportunity to include matters in the agenda for
Board meetings. Details of individual attendance of the
Directors in Board meetings are set out in the table on page
37 of this annual report.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND
REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract or appointment letter with the Company for a specific
term of two or three years. All of their appointments are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the Company.

All of the independent non-executive Directors and the non-
executive Director were appointed for a term of three years,
and are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.
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Nomination Policy

The responsibilities and authority for selection and
appointment of Directors is delegated to the Nomination
Committee but the ultimate responsibility for selection and
appointment of Directors of the Company rests with the entire
Board. In evaluating and selecting any candidate for
directorship, among other things, the following criteria will be
considered:

e  Character and integrity.

° Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience and diversity aspects under
the board diversity policy that are relevant to the
Company’s business and corporate strategy.

° Any measurable objectives adopted for achieving
diversity on the Board.

° Requirement for the Board to have independent directors
in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidate would be considered independent with
reference to the independence guidelines set out in the
Listing Rules.

° Any potential contributions the candidate can bring to the
Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and gender diversity.

° Willingness and ability to devote adequate time to
discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or the
Board Committee(s).

o Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company’s business and succession plan and where
applicable, may be adopted and/or amended by the
Board and/or the Nomination Committee from time to
time for nomination of directors and succession planning.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board will evaluate the
candidates based on the criteria as set out above to determine
whether such candidates are qualified for directorship. The
Nomination Committee will also consider recommendations for
candidates made by shareholders of the Company.
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Regular reviews will be conducted by the Nomination
Committee on the structure, size and composition of the
Board and the policy on nomination of Directors of the
Company and where appropriate, the Nomination Committee
will make recommendations on changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy and business
needs.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. During the year
ended 31 December 2021, Mr. Chen Xiao Liang was the
Chairman who provided leadership to the Board but he was
not involved in the day-to-day management of the Group’s
business. Mr. Qin Song was the Vice-Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company during the year and his role
was to oversee the overall management of the Group.

Training for Directors

The Company continuously updates Directors on the latest
developments and changes to the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements and provides training to
develop and refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills. The
Company also provides Directors with monthly updates on the
performance, position and prospects of the Company.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuing
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Company has prepared a training
record in order to assist the Directors to record the training
undergone by each of them.

The company secretary reports from time to time the latest
changes and development of the Listing Rules and other
corporate governance requirements with written materials.
Individual Director had also attended seminars and/or
conferences or workshops or forums relevant to his profession
and duties as directors. All Directors have provided the
Company with their respective training records in compliance
with Code A.6.5 of the Code.
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TEERRES

Below is a summary of the training the directors had received

during the year:

Name of Directors

FR - ESEIEIWOBELT

Type of trainings

EEpnE FAIER
Mr. Chen Xiao Liang B
BRIQR B4

Mr. Qin Song (Vice-Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) B
PR A (B EEFRATHAES)

Mr. Huang Wanru B
HEEWEE

Ms. Zheng Jinghui (resigned on 16 July 2021) B
BEELL (R —F LA+ BEIT)

Mr. Jiang Xiang Yu (appointed on 16 July 2021) B
BEmItE(RZEZ—F LA+ BEZE)

Ms. Li Li A&B
FHEZ L

Mr. Lam Ying Hung, Andy B
MEIESE A

Mr. Lui Tin Nang A&B
EPN: e

Mr. Siu Man Ho, Simon B
MY ZELE

A Attending seminars/conferences/workshops/forums

B: Reading journals/updates/articles/materials

A IR & TIEY Wi
B:  BHETMBER,XE/ MK
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Chung Kik Lewis (“Mr. Chan”) has resigned as the
company secretary with effect from 16 July 2021. Following
the resignation of Mr. Chan, Mr. Ng Wing Ching (“Mr. Ng”) was
appointed as the new company secretary in his place with
effect from 16 July 2021. Mr. Ng is a full time staff of the
Group and is responsible for ensuring and advising the Board
on compliance of all policies and procedures in connection
with the applicable rules and regulations.

The biographical details of Mr. Ng are set out under the
section headed “Profile of directors and senior management”.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, Mr. Ng received not
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training to update
his knowledge and skills.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee which consists
of the three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Lam Ying Hung, Andy, Mr. Lui Tin Nang and Mr. Siu Man Ho,
Simon, and one non-executive Director, namely Ms. Li Li, and
Mr. Lui Tin Nang is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are, among other
matters, to review and monitor the financial reporting process,
internal control and risk management of the Group, and to
report to the Board on matters relating to the corporate
governance as stated in the Code. During the year ended 31
December 2021, the Audit Committee held three meetings to
review, among others, the financial results, financial reporting
and compliance procedures, internal control and risk
management systems, the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal audit function, appointment and scope of work of
external auditors. The Board has not taken a different view
from that of the Audit Committee regarding the selections,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external auditors.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are disclosed
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee which
consists of five members (including the three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Ying Hung, Andy,
Mr. Lui Tin Nang and Mr. Siu Man Ho, Simon, one non-
executive Director, namely Ms. Li Li and one executive
Director, namely Mr. Huang Wanru) and Mr. Lam Ying Hung,
Andy is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are, among
other matters, to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of executive Directors and senior management
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such remuneration.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is based
on the merit, qualifications and competence of the individuals.
The emoluments of the Directors are reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Remuneration
Committee held three meetings and reviewed the remuneration
policy, assessed performance of executive Directors and
approved the terms of the executive Directors’ service
contracts and the remuneration packages of the Directors and
senior management.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
disclosed on the websites of the Company and the Stock

Exchange.

The remuneration of directors and senior management by
band for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out below:

Remuneration bands

FMEES
ARRERUFMNEES - HFMEESHE
ZRE(BRE=R2BERNTES (AIME
BELE  BREEERBXREE)  —F
FHTEF(AFHLL) R—RRTES
(Bl & anse)) K - MMEBEERS
MEZEEMER  FMEESENIZRESE
(B BR)RATEERSNEEABNH
B - UstEREZEFMBERRLEARSE
RENEF REFSELHEERSR

AEEREBNFHFIMBER DEREANDAE -
BEERED BEFNFHIAFHRZESE
ZRANAINKEEE AARBALAEL
BISEBEELER

HE-_Z-_—F+_-_A=+—HLFE %
MEE S LRIT=NSE ME R MNBCR -
EMITEERIR - UHERITEERBES
HNFHUAREZE RS REIEABOFIE
g@ °

#B1% 8 & OBERE D AR T RBRA
04 T -

BE-_ZTZ-_—F+-_A=t—BHILFEE=
SREEEBMNHMARMT

Number of persons

rEN4E Bl A
Up to HK$1,000,000 11
%% 1,000,000 /& 7T

HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 3

1,000,001 /87T ZE 2,000,000 /&7
Above HK$2,000,001
2,000,001 A& TTHA £
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Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the
five highest paid employees as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in
notes 13 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee which
consists of five members (including the three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Ying Hung, Andy,
Mr. Lui Tin Nang and Mr. Siu Man Ho, Simon, one non-
executive Director, namely Ms. Li Li and Mr. Qin Song, an
executive Director) and Mr. Siu Man Ho, Simon is the chairman
of the Nomination Committee. The primary duties of the
Nomination Committee are, among other matters, to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board on a regular
basis, to assess the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors, and to make recommendations to the
Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors. According to the board diversity policy adopted by
the Nomination Committee, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service etc. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board. Selection of candidates will be based on a range
of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service etc. The final decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Nomination
Committee held two meetings to make recommendations to
the Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and discussed and reviewed the
structure, size and composition of the Board.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are

disclosed on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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Attendance of meetings

The attendance of each Director at Board meetings, Board
Committees meetings and general meetings of the Company

for the year 2021 is set out below:

ERHERE

Attendance out of number of meetings

& &k
= =

RIZEZ—FEF ZEBSZRNES
EZE8eg MREARENEFEEROT

CE

HHERBENERERY
General
Audit Remuneration Nomination meeting
Name of director Board Committee Committee Committee (Note 1)
BREAE
ESnE =g ENZRES 40 Pk REZES GES)
Executive Directors HITEE
Chen Xiao Liang BRR 47 - - - 2/2
Qin Song /G 77 - - 2/2 2/2
Mr. Huang Wanru EEMES 77 - - - 2/9
Ms. Zheng Jinghui FHEat
resigned on 16 July 2021)  (R=Z=—
T RTABEE) 4/4 - - - 1/1
Jiang Xiang Yu EER
(appointed on 16 July 2021) (R=ZE=—F
tA+H
BZf) 3/3 - 3/3 - 1A
Non-Executive Director FHTEE
LiLi 23] /7 3/3 3/3 2/2 2/2
Independent Non-Executive BV 38772 %
Directors
Lam Ying Hung, Andy MEE I 3/3 3/3 2/2 2/2
Lui Tin Nang B /7 3/3 3/3 2/2 112
Siu Man Ho, Simon BEXx 6/7 3/3 3/3 2/2 2/2
Note: MisE -
1. The annual general meeting and extraordinary general meeting were 1. BRAFREERRFIREDNR_E=_—F

held on 11 June 2021 and 15 November 2021 respectively.

NAt+—BR-_E-—&#+—B+AEBETo
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ and Auditor’s acknowledgement

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group for each
financial year, which should give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group and of the
results and cash flow for that year in compliance with relevant
laws and applicable accounting standards.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021, the Directors have adopted
appropriate and consistent accounting policies and made
prudent and reasonable judgments and estimations.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021 have been prepared on a going-concern
basis. The responsibility of the external auditor is to form an
independent opinion, based on their audit, on those
consolidated financial statements of the Group prepared by
the Board and to report their opinion to the Shareholders. A
statement by the auditor about their reporting responsibilities
is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report.

Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the remuneration
paid/payable to Mazars CPA Limited in respect of audit and
non-audit services is summarised as follows:

BEREZ

R AR
ERGRIARLAEAENBEEGAS
BREROEE - HHRRBEETA TR
BAAARSEBRZERDEHRR - 2
ERBESRE  LETEREP R
B -

AREEE T -+ -_A=+—HItF
ERGEEUMBHRRT  E5ERAEE R —
BHGEIHEE  WIELRERES BN HE X
et e

BE_Z_—F+-_A=+—HILFENRE
BMBERRIIBFELEEERE - M
BN EEAREBEEA ERYEZTS MRS
MREREEGEVBHRRIBLBLIER -
WARREHRLER - B ERRET
PREER MR NE XA REN ©

- CIE A

HE T —F+-_A=+—HIFE &
ERRIEEERBAPERE(ED) 25
BB R A BB, A B & 8t a0
I

HK$’000
FERT
Statutory audit services VA TE B %R 2,100
Non-audit services: IEEZIRTS
Services in connection with the review of the ErZ B S ERE R
interim financial report 1B RS 400
Services in connection with the preparation RETEREER BN
of a major and connected transaction circular 1B AR % 470
Total BET 2,970
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and for reviewing their
effectiveness. The Group’s internal control system is designed
to safeguard assets against misappropriation and unauthorized
disposition and to manage operational risks. These systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. Internal control and risk management
systems are reviewed annually to ensure its continuous
effectiveness. The Group has in place a risk management
framework which has the following five components: risk
identification, risk assessment, risk treatment, reporting and
monitoring.

A review of the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal
control for the year covering all key controls, including financial,
operational and compliance and risk management controls, is
conducted by rotation and performed annually. The
examination consisted of enquiry, discussion and validation
through observation and inspection. The result of the review
has been reported to the Audit Committee and the Board and
areas of improvement, if any, have been identified and
appropriate measures have been put in place to manage the
risks. The Company’s internal audit department independently
reviews the effectiveness of the internal controls and risk
management, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, in the key activities of the Company’s business and
submits a report at least once a year to the Board for its review
and monitors the effectiveness of the system of internal control
and risk management of the Group.

For the year of 2021, no significant control failings,
weaknesses, risk or critical internal control issues have been
identified. Based on the reports from the Group’s internal audit
department, the Audit Committee and the Board consider the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
adequate and effective and the Group has complied with the
provisions on risk management and internal controls as set out
in the CG Code.
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The Company has procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information. The Group
strictly prohibits unauthorised use of inside information. The
Group strives to identify inside information and any information
which may potentially constitute inside information at the
earliest opportunity. Such information is then assessed and
handed to the Board for decision on the need for disclosure.
Inside information and other information which is required to
be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules and the SFO will be
disclosed in accordance with all applicable requirements in
due course. Inside information would be kept strictly
confidential until such disclosure.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
The constitutional documents of the Company are available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the year, there was no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.

DIVIDEND POLICY

In recommending or declaring dividends, the Company shall
maintain adequate cash reserves for meeting its working
capital requirements and future growth as well as its
shareholder value. There is no pre-determined dividend payout
ratio and the declaration and distribution of dividends shall be
determined at the sole discretion of the Board taking into
account, among others, the financial results, cashflow
situation, future operations and earnings, capital requirements
and expenditure plans and any other factors that the Board
may consider relevant. The Company may declare and pay
dividends by way of cash or scrip or by other means that the
Board considers appropriate. The declaration and distribution
of dividends shall also be subject to the articles of association
of the Company and all applicable laws and regulations. The
Board will review the policy from time to time and make
relevant amendments as necessary.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company aims to maintain regular, effective and fair
communication with shareholders and is committed to
conveying important and relevant information to shareholders
on a timely basis. In compliance with the Listing Rules, at least
20 clear business days’ notice will be given to the shareholders
for annual general meeting and at least 10 clear business
days’ notice will be given for all other meetings. All general
meetings of the Company have been conducted by way of poll
and detailed procedures for conducting a poll were explained
at the commencement of the meeting. Results on all general
meetings will be published by way of an announcement
immediately following the relevant general meeting.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

In accordance with Article 58 of the articles of association of
the Company, one or more shareholders of the Company
holding as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionists themselves may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionists by the Company.
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If a shareholder wishes to nominate a person to be elected as
a Director, the following documents must be validly served to
the Company’s principal place of business at 3/F, 38 On Lok
Mun Street, On Lok Tsuen, Fanling, New Territories, Hong
Kong: (i) his/her notice of intention to propose a resolution at
the general meeting; and (ii) a notice executed by the
nominated candidate of his/her willingness to be appointed
together with his/her information as required to be disclosed
under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, within the period
commencing on the day after the dispatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and ending on the
date falling seven days after the dispatch of the said notice of
the general meeting.

Any Shareholder may direct their enquires and proposal by
mail to the Company’s principal place of business at Room 3/
F, 38 On Lok Mun Street, On Lok Tsuen, Fanling, New
Territories, Hong Kong.

Shareholders should direct any questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar: Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.
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Profile of directors and senior management

EENSNEEEERE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Xiao Liang (FR#& R ), aged 63, was appointed as
an executive Director with effect from 12 March 2019, was re-
designated as Chairman with effect from 31 March 2020 and
re-designated as Chief Executive Officer with effect from 21
January 2022. He has over 20 years of extensive experience in
the property investment and development industry. He was
the Chairman of Merryearn (Holdings) Limited (& 78 E R £ &
AR AA]) from 1985 to 1995. He has been the Chairman of a
number of corporations in mainland China, namely, Shenzhen
Guangyin Building Industry Co., Limited* (I E R K E&E %
BPBR/AR]) since 1995; Shenzhen Hongta Industry Co., Limited*
CRINAIE T AR A F)) since November 2002 (in which he
has also been acting as a general manager); Shenzhen
Hongding Asset Management Co., Limited* (R THAL 8 & &
‘EI2ABR A 7)) since February 2010; and Shenzhen Hongding
Property Development Co., Limited* (331|141 5 5 th 2 7 2%
AR A 7)) since June 2010.

Mr. Huang Wanru (EE ), aged 53, was appointed as an
executive Director and a member of the Remuneration
Committee with effect from 31 March 2020. He was appointed
as a member of the Nomination Committee with effect from 21
January 2022. He was appointed as a vice president of the
Group in October 2011 and resumed the same position in
March 2020 when he rejoined the Group after brief departure
from the Group in June 2018 for other business engagements.
With years of extensive working experience in the finance field,
Mr. Huang has been responsible for the financial and
management information system of the Group. Since he joined
the Group in May 1998, he has been serving in various
subsidiary companies of the Group in various roles such as
cost accounting, finance manager and finance controller.
Since March 2008, he has been appointed as the financial
controller of the Group. He was also appointed as director of
certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. JIANG Xiang Yu (3 ¥ HI), aged 66, was appointed as
an executive Director with effect from 16 July 2021. He was
appointed as a vice president of the Group in September
2011. Since he joined the Group in June 1999, he has been
serving in various subsidiary companies of the Group as
general manager and has over 20 years of experience in the
cigarette package industry. Mr. Jiang was appointed as
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

* The English names are not official names and are provided for
identification purpose only
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Non-Executive Director

Ms. LI Li (Z2%]), aged 50, was appointed as an non-executive
Director on 22 July 2015. Ms. Li is a Chairman of the board of
directors of Masterwork Group Co., Ltd. (K2R LRI £
I 1D B BR A Al) (“Masterwork” together with its subsidiaries,
the “Masterwork Group”), a company whose issued shares are
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock code: 300195).
She is also an executive director of certain subsidiaries of the
Masterwork Group Co., Ltd. and Tianjin Ming Xuan Investment
Limited Company* (X & % #F 1% & A R 2 7). She has been
appointed as a member of the supervisory board of
Heidelberger Druckmaschinen AG, a company listed on the
Frankfurt Stock Exchange, since 25 July 2019. Ms. Li is
qualified as a senior economist in the People’s Republic of
China. She has extensive management experience in the
printing and packaging companies.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy (#2%38), aged 57, was appointed
as an Independent Non-Executive Director on 4 March 2009.
Mr. Lam is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Lam has over 25 years of
experience in accounting, banking and finance sectors. Mr.
Lam is the Managing Consultant of Lontreprise Consulting
Limited. Mr. Lam is an associate member of various
professional organisations, namely The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators, The Hong Kong Institute of
Company Secretaries and The Hong Kong Institute of
Bankers. Mr. Lam is also a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a Certified Public
Accountant of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). Mr. Lam is an Independent Non-
Executive Director of Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited and
Synertone Communication Corporation and Weiye Holdings
Limited, all of them are companies listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lam received his Master of
Professional Accounting and Master of Science in
E-commerce for Executives both from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University.

* The English name is not an official name and is provided for
identification purpose only
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Mr. LUI Tin Nang (& X §£), aged 64 was appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director on 4 March 2009. Mr. Lui
is the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of
the Company. Mr. Lui has a Bachelor degree in Science from
the University of Leeds, a Master Degree in Business
Administration from the University of Bradford in United
Kingdom and a Postgraduate Diploma in insolvency from
HKICPA. He is a fellow member of the HKICPA (Practicing),
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales, the
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong, and The Society of Chinese
Accountants and Auditors. He is also a member of the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountant, Institute of
Certified Public Accountants in Australia and the Certified Tax
Adviser. He has years of experience in accounting, auditing,
taxation, corporate finance and business advisory. Mr. Lui was
publicly censured by the Stock Exchange on 15 July 2019 for
certain breaches and he was reprimanded by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants on 2 November 2020
for failure to comply with certain rules and practice note.
Details of the above are set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 9 August 2019 and 21 April 2021.

Mr. SIU Man Ho, Simon (X %), aged 48, was appointed
as an Independent Non-Executive Director on 4 March 2009.
Mr. Siu is the chairman of the Nomination Committee and a
member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Siu is a practising solicitor of
the High Court of Hong Kong. He obtained a Bachelor of Laws
degree from the University of Hong Kong in 1996 and is a
partner of a Hong Kong law firm, namely Sit, Fung, Kwong &
Shum Solicitors. Mr. Siu is also a China Appointed Attesting
Officer appointed by the Ministry of Justice of the PRC. His
areas of practice include corporate finance, capital markets,
securities, mergers and acquisitions, joint ventures and general
commercial matters. Mr. Siu is also an independent non-
executive director of Wai Yuen Tong Medicine Holdings
Limited (stock code 897), Shuang Yun Holdings Limited (stock
code 1706) and HKE Holdings Limited (stock code 1726), all
of which are companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. He also actively participates in charitable and social
services in Hong Kong. He was previously appointed as the
director of Hong Kong Pok Oi Hospital. He is acting as the
legal adviser for United Hearts Youth Foundation and VQ
Foundation as well as the school manager of The Association
of Directors and Former Directors of Pok Oi Hospital Ltd.
Leung Sing Tak College. He is also a member of the
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference in Yangjiang City of Guangdong Province, the
PRC.
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Profile of directors and senior management

ESREREEERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. YAN Feng (& &), aged 64, is a Vice President of the
Group since March 2016 responsible for the Group
infrastructure advancement, equipment management and
investment, policy research and technology management. Mr.
Yan joined the Group in 2000 and has more than 20 years of
experience in the cigarette package industry and he also has
experience in printing of books services.

Mr. Ng Wing Ching ( & ’k #8), aged 42, is the Financial
Controller and Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Ng
joined the Group in July 2021. He holds a bachelor’s degree of
Business Administration (Accounting) from the City University
of Hong Kong. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and has nearly twenty years of
experience in auditing, accounting and corporate governance.
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Independent auditor’s report
B2 AR

mazars

To the members of Litu Holdings Limited

(formerly known as Brilliant Circle Holdings International
Limited)

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Litu
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Brilliant Circle Holdings
International Limited) (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 56 to 213, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Mazars CPA LIMITED

H IR (B ) st p s oA )
42nd Floor, Central Plaza,
18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

T s VAT 7 VS 1 8 9% i IR B By 40k
Tel £ &6 : (852) 2909 5555

Fax ¥ & : (852) 2810 0032
Email & : info@mazars.hk
Website 411k : www.mazars.hk
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Independent auditor’s report
B2 AR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS FAREITEIE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional FEEHEHEIBBEESNEEHE - R A
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the HAEIMGAPBRENBIARAEENSE
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These 1B o ZEEIE N EEE TGS MR
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the H&HEERRERIE EET@UREEE
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming 12 #tEBHNER

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

REETER EEREFIPNERL R

Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible assets

BERELEERENG

Refer to notes 19 and 20 to the consolidated financial statements
R A IREZ N T 19K 20

We identified the impairment assessment of QOur key procedures in relation to the impairment
goodwill and intangible assets as a key audit matter assessment of goodwill and intangible assets included:
due to significant judgements and estimations EZEZHEEREFEEREBEN FETHNEZERFE
exercised by the Group’s management in #&:

impairment assessment.

EERIHEREREEREBEN G RBARETTE ¢  Discussing with the Group’s management on

HRAARE BEXEEEEEEETRENGRARE their approach to impairment assessment;
B R I R AhET - e B BEREERBENWBAENGENGE:

o Evaluating the independent qualified professional
valuer’s competence, capabilities and objectivity;

e HABEUAERIERMLERMNBENE  EH Kk
HEM

° Reviewing the valuation report provided by the
independent qualified professional valuer and
assessing its reasonableness;

s THBIUAEREXMEMAIEHNMEER
HFWRIEERRSIE

LITU HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Independent auditor’s report

BB E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

RRETER

BRFISHE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEEEESPNEELE

Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible assets (continued)

BERENEERENMG(E)

Refer to notes 19 and 20 to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

LIEAF B TE A M it 19520 (4)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s goodwill and
intangible assets amounted to approximately
HK$797,504,000 (net of accumulated impairment
loss of approximately HK$388,554,000) and
approximately HK$25,617,000 respectively relating
to the business combinations in previous years
which are subject to impairment assessment in
accordance with Hong Kong Accounting Standard
36 “Impairment of Assets” issued by the HKICPA.
RZBZ—F+ZA=+—H  E5ENEEKL
A E D BB #I797,504,000 7% 7T (H1BkR 250
{E/E518.47388,554,000/8 7T ) &2 425,617,000/ 7T
BRBRFENEBEH  ARBEEGHNAE
MM BEBGTERNEICH [EERE] ETRE
A

As detailed in notes 19 and 20 to the consolidated
financial statements, in determining whether
goodwill and intangible assets are impaired requires
an estimation of the recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and
its value in use of the cash-generating units
(“*CGUs") to which goodwill and intangible assets
have been allocated. Significant judgements,
estimations and assumptions were required by
management of the Group in assessing the
recoverable amounts of the CGUs.

BN M RAM E19 R 0TI - BEEE
MEEERSREAMGTAIKRE SR BIRAAE
BERLEXNNRESKHEREVEERCESLE
(ReEFEMDNEREERETHERSE -
EHEReELABEUNAIWNED BN - S5ETE
IBEAEDERAE - At REFR-

Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation
approaches and checking their mathematical
accuracy;

HAHET ZRERE L REH T ERE

Assessing the reasonableness of the key
assumptions based on our knowledge and
understanding of the industry and market;

RIBRPIETRE NS ME N TR A EE

BREZARE :

Checking, on a sample basis, the
completeness, reliability, accuracy and
relevance of the input data used by
management and the independent qualified
professional valuers; and
HMEREBTEERE S EREEMEMATA
MABIBSE TR - A% - ERNAR &

Reviewing the sensitivity analyses performed by
the management to evaluate the potential
impacts on the recoverable amount and
impairment.

EHHEEBETHNGREDN - AT EH A
Wl &R MRENBELE -
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Independent auditor’s report

B XA E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

RRETER

BRFISHGAE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEEEENPNEELE

Expected credit losses (“ECL”) assessment of trade receivables

BZRWRERMFES R ((RHEEHED

Refer to notes 24 and 39 to the consolidated financial statements

RERAR A BT RZ M it 24 & 39

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s trade
receivables amounted to approximately
HK$364,539,000 (net of allowance for ECL of
approximately HK$6,944,000). Reversal of loss
allowance amounting to approximately
HK$2,515,000 has been recognised during the
year.
RZZE_—F+ZHA=+—H > EXENEFE
W SR TE 5 49.364,539,000 7% 7T (FBR B A BB 1B
R 155496,944,000/8 7T ) ~ ESERERE @ 492,515,000
BITERARFREHER °

We consider this matter as a key audit matter
because of their significant judgement and
estimations exercised by the Group’s management
in the ECL assessment of trade receivables.
HEASEAHEE SXREEREENESEWHIA
TREEEEBRNGEITENGEE  EERLEIERE
RESFEE -

LITU HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Our key procedures in relation to the ECL
assessment of trade receivables included:

EERE SR WHIBTEREEBEN G cERER
BIE

e Evaluating the independent professional
valuer’s competence, capabilities and

objectivity;
e EBEBVEEMEMEABT ARIRE
A

° Reviewing the ECL assessment prepared by
management and ECL valuation report issued
by the independent professional valuer;

s EREEERAEMNEHMEEBEIGIEVE
EHEMZELNEREEEERN GRS

e Assessing whether there is evidence of
management bias on impairment assessment
of trade receivables by evaluating the
consistency of judgement made by the
management year on year through discussion
with the management to understand their
rationale;

o  FBEEIRENRABRBREIRETFIEAE
ZIRE - FHEBBEHABES B KMk

LBERBRETEEBNIEE SRR ZR
ERHARR

e Testing settlement of trade receivables
throughout the year, on a sample basis, to
ensure the reliability of past collection history
for management’s recoverability assessment;

e MEAABIRUWREBREBEFEZEERE
Mo ARERBENRELEA S - WEERRE
& AT U E 1



Independent auditor’s report

BB E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

RRETER

BRFISHE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEEEESPNEELE

Expected credit losses (“ECL”) assessment of trade receivables (continued)

ESRWRERMFESR(FRBEEERD(E)

Refer to notes 24 and 39 to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

LR B TE AR M it 24 K 39 (#)

Management assessed the allowance for ECL of
trade receivables based on probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses over the expected life of
these receivables and where there are any events or
changes in circumstances indicate a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
trade receivables.

EIR BN % E RYGRIATA B BN R B E =143
BRABCBREE SHRWFIAGGARKRERER
AANZERRBEEBREE R MELATEES
JEW R IBTRERE B 18 5E -

Assessing whether items in trade receivables
ageing report were classified within the
appropriate ageing bracket by comparing
individual items in the report with the relevant
sales invoices on a sample basis;

FEHIE L BB H R IAR R RS A ERE B
HEAEAHEER A ZREASEEREE
DREEEREAER

Assessing the appropriateness of the
methodologies and critical judgements made
by management leading to the conclusion of
the recoverability assessment;
B E R B MR TR AR A
ERZ RS RSEE

Assessing the reasonableness of recoverability
of trade receivables with reference to credit
history including default or delay in payments,
settlement records, subsequent settlements
and ageing analysis; and

SBERSIEEN K - FELSE - HgBER
AMRRDITEEE L - 7T E SRR
ZAREIMREEE &k

Evaluating the judgements made by
management over the expectation of
occurrence of the impairment event against the
evidence available.
HIEFR15RE  IEEEEURERESHZ
TEEAVEL 2 HIE -
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Independent auditor’s report
B2 AR

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the 2021 annual report of the Company, but does
not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

LITU HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Independent auditor’s report
B2 AR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

BB ERGS M BRRARE
MEE

EENERRAERTERAMERRERM
ETEFAERNAGFRERMEMNEKRE
MR - W ABRESFER N ZBANR
o ARERBEEFHENZTRIGERA B
TERER)EL - BRt 2N EE M
& o BEFMARARRENATEEREMA
TEEIAREERNSE -

BEETEESERNZE  EREEEER
ERETHEZ TIETRREREREMTT
FERMERERIRA o #5RER A A] R EGF 3k i
MEL - HERRERESERABERATA
FEEREREGEVBRRIEL LR
ER - RIBAR BB RS RERUL -

ERBERBRAERETETEES &
EREXRHAE REBXIEREE - BF

jaray
=
Ih -

a8 Al B S A e R BREF BK 85 AR T 8 BUAR
EMBHRRFEERHERRAMNER -
Rt RBITEFEF AEEZE AR
ANERFTERMEENESERE  (F
REFERNER - ARNEEFRI LY
RER BE FEER ERRM
SR EABEZENERN - FILREE
3R R R T 8 2 B K88 RR R ) R
RERAREHRFNERMERNEKN
$H SRR [

EAHEBO R IE - ARRET

igi 3=
BENESAEF EXIFEEY B
SEAMEENEREERER -

2021 FH HEERBR AR

53



54

Independent auditor’s report
B2 AR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.
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Independent auditor’s report
B2 AR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong,

31 March 2022

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is:

Chan Chi Wai
Practising Certificate number: PO5708
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
et EHRBEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —ZL - —F+ A =+—HIEFE

2021 2020
—E--F ZZT-EFF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B FET FET

Revenue g 5 1,158,852 1,339,439
Cost of sales SHEK AR (997,365) (1,073,661)
Gross profit EF 161,487 265,778
Other income HEUA 7 41,575 46,939
Other net gains and losses HEab e R EEFRE 8 (104,983) (173,846)
Reversal of (Loss allowance) on B 5 NEM RN TR K

trade and other receivables BHEEREEERD

and contract assets, net (BfE) 58 9 2,486 (2,267)
Selling and distribution expenses  $4& &9 5 % (26,180) (41,220)
Administrative expenses TR (113,725) (83,531)
Other expenses HibFAx = (4,597)
Finance costs BB KA 10 (14,416) (20,688)
Share of result of associates DB E N R EAE 21 70,126 59,304
Share of result of a joint venture  H{E—RIA S XS 22 (83) 214
Profit before taxation BRBE AR R 11 16,287 46,086
Taxation 18 12 (5,665) (87,114)
Profit for the year FEERER 10,622 8,972
Other comprehensive income HfttZmEU %
ltems that will not be reclassified ~ T&&E 21809188 -

to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising from [R#BEHEEEHE A2 HEHE

translation from functional mEEEH Z5E

currency to presentation

currency 49,920 134,615
Total comprehensive income SFEZHEIKFELE

for the year 60,542 143,587
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
et EHRBEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —L - —F+ A =+T—HIEFE

2021 2020
—E-—-F E-THF
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
B aE FHET FHT
Profit for the year attributable to: Ll A +EEEEZRA :
Owners of the Company KATERA 8,628 8,915
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR R R 1,994 57
10,622 8,972
Total comprehensive income LT ATEE2EREELE :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NETEF=WN 57,230 142,081
Non-controlling interests FEIERRfE A 3,312 1,506
60,542 143,587
2021 2020
2% ZZTZTF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Earnings per share
Basic and diluted 0.006 0.006

202153 HEERBRAF]



58

Consolidated statement of financial position

e BB ER

At 31 December 2021 A—ZE-—F+=-HA=+—H

2021 2020
—F--F ZT-TF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
PET FHET FHT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - B MR 16 887,241 902,392
Right-of-use assets EHAEEE 17 103,347 104,176
Investment properties "EYE 18 55,780 22,305
Goodwill PEES 19 797,504 885,408
Intangible assets EREE 20 32,279 72,351
Interests in an associate R—EEE R NER 21 455,869 450,364
Interests in a joint venture R—EE & EMER 22 8,559 8,414
Deferred tax assets EEHIBEE 34 5,895 1,333
Rental and other deposits paid ENEEREMIZS 26 3,889 2,402
2,350,363 2,449,145
Current assets RENEE
Inventories e 23 121,648 112,491
Trade receivables S RTE 24 364,539 512,533
Contract assets BHEE 25 144,569 113,187
Other receivables, prepayments HubpelhZhoE - A I8
and refundable deposits KARER] & 26 57,013 68,899
Tax recoverable Al e F IR 4,271 2,709
Pledged bank deposits EEPRITER 27 11,488 14,523
Bank balances and cash RITHEHR NI S 27 440,350 315,391
1,143,878 1,139,733
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Consolidated statement of financial position
RERBARRE

At 31 December 2021 A-Z=-—F+=-F=+—H

2021 2020
—E--F ZZT-EFF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B FET TFET
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables E S ERN I8 28 256,211 214,037
Other payables and accruals HubpEFoB L ESTE A 29 133,458 102,269
Lease liabilities HEaE 30 333 991
Amount due to a non-controlling &~ — REFT B A 71 FEFE R
interest of a subsidiary BEESFIE 31 2,552 2,484
Bank borrowings RITEE 32 342,428 411,206
Income tax payable FERTRTIS L 10,748 16,503
745,730 747,490
Net current assets REBEEEE 398,148 392,243
Total assets less current HWEERRBAEE
liabilities 2,748,511 2,841,388
Non-current liabilities FREBAE
Government grants AT #Bh & 33 25,931 28,383
Lease liabilities HEBE 30 - 302
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEEE 34 49,000 42,876
74,931 71,561
NET ASSETS BEEFE 2,673,580 2,769,827
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Consolidated statement of financial position

e BB ER

At 31 December 2021 R—ZE=-—F+=-_F=+—8

2021 2020
—EB-—-F E-THF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
P5E FET FET
Capital and reserves EAXK#E

Share capital A& AR 35 7,839 7,839
Reserves s 2,639,048 2,738,607

Equity attributable to owners RAEHB ANEIEER
of the Company 2,646,887 2,746,446
Non-controlling interests FEE IR 26,693 23,381
TOTAL EQUITY B 2,673,580 2,769,827

FEOEQIBEMHEAMERREN ZF
T =A==+ HESESHENRES
o Wl TIALTRREE

These consolidated financial statements on pages 56 to 213
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 31 March 2022 and signed on its behalf by

Mr. Chen Xiao Liang Mr. Huang Wanru

BRRRREE BEBWKE
Director Director
EFE 2
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —L - —F+ A =+T—HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LN 29N
Reserves
Fate
Non-
Share Share  Statutory Other ~ Dividend  Exchange  Refained Total controling Total
capitl  premum  reseve  reserves  reserve  reseve  eamings  resenves Totl  interests equity
R
R REE EERE  AtEE ReRE EXEE REEN BRELE &5t B ERRE
HKS000  HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000
Tén TEn  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEn  TEx TEr TEr TEn
(Note@) ~ (Noteb)  (Notec) (Note d)
(Mita)  (MiEo)  (Wic) (M)
At1 January 2020 RZF-FE-f-A 7839 4936913 189,880 (2907,725) 299936  (121,967) 499425 2896462 2904301 21,875 2926176
Proft for the year ERad - - - - - - 895 8915 815 5 81
Other comprehensive income EREm2ENE
for the year
— Exchange differences arising - NEREER
from transiation from functional I EREEY
currency to presentation EiEE
currency - - - - - 133,166 - 133166 133,166 1449 134615
Total comprehensive income ER2ENEER
for the year - - - - - 133,166 8915 142,081 142,081 1506 143587
Transactions with owners: HERARS
Contributions and distrbutions AERAK
Final dvidend for 2020 proposed ~~ ~B-BERERHRE
(note 15) (Brsx15) - - - - 156789 - [156,789) - - - -
Dividend recognised as distoution A RARE (M5 15)
(note 15) - - - - (29993) - - (299,936)  (299,930) - (299,936)
- - - - (143147) - (156,789 (299.936)  (299,936) - (299,936)
At 31 December 2020 RZE-EF+-A=1-H 7839 4936913 189,880 (2907725 156,780 11,199 351551 2738607 2746446 23381 2,769,827
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —ZL - —F+ A =+—HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAEEAES
Reserves
1
Non-
Share Share  Statutory Other Dividend Exchange Retained Total controlling Total
capital premium  reserve reserves  reserve  reserve - eamings - reserves Total interests equity
FER
A RGEE AERE HthEE RERE ENRE REEN GRE4E it BE BHEE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS000 HK$000
Tén TER TEx TEn  TEr TEr  TER  TEr  TEn  TEn  TEx
(Notea)  (Noteb)  (Notec) (Note d)
(Wita)  (W&b) (Wi (Wid)
At1 January 2021 R-E--F-f-A 7839 4936913 189,880 (2,907,725) 156,789 11,199 351,551 2738607 2746446 23381 2,769,827
Profit for the year FRERT - - - - - - 8,628 8,628 8,628 1994 10,622
Other comprehensive income EREm2ENE
for the year
— Exchange diflerences arising - RNEERAER
from transiation from functional I EREEY
currency to presentation EiEE
currency - - - - - 48602 - 48602 48,602 1318 49,020
Total comprehensive income ER2ENEER
for the year - - - - - 48602 8628 57,230 57,230 3312 60,542
Transactions with owners: BERARS
Contributions and distrbutions AERAK
Dividend recognised as distioution ¥R A5 TREIR 8 (H3 15)
(note 15) - - - - (156,789) - - (156,789) (156,789) - (156,789)
- - - - (156,789) - - (156,789) (156,789) - (156,789)
At 31 December 2021 R-B--F+ZA=t-H 7839 4936913 189,880 (2,907,725) - 59801 360,79 2,630,048 2646887 26,693 2,673,580
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

For th

Notes:

(@)

e year ended 31 December 2021 i Z —F-_—F+—_A=1+—HIFE

Share premium presents the excess of the net proceeds or
consideration from issuance of the Company’s shares over their par
value. The application of the share premium accounts is governed by
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for enterprises in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the Company’s PRC
subsidiaries are required to maintain statutory reserve. Appropriation to
such reserve is made out of profit after taxation as reflected in the
statutory financial statements of the PRC subsidiaries while the amounts
and allocation basis are decided by its board of directors annually. The
appropriation to statutory surplus reserve may cease if the balance of
the statutory surplus reserve has reached 50% of the PRC subsidiaries’
registered capital. The statutory reserve can be used to make up prior
year losses, if any, and can be applied in conversion into capital by
means of capitalisation issue.

Other reserves comprised () the merger reserve which arose from the
difference between the nominal value and premium of shares of merged
subsidiaries over the nominal value of the shares issued by the
Company in exchange thereof; (i) issue of shares of the Company to
the former controlling shareholder of the Company in exchange of his
entire equity interests in the subsidiary; and (iii) reserve resulting from
the transactions with non-controlling interests in relation to the change
of equity interests in the subsidiaries in prior years.

Exchange reserve comprises the translation differences between the
Group’s net assets in functional currency to the Group’s presentation
currency.

Beinim BRRBEITAR RN AEHRBFERA
ERLEEEND - R EERNAEZHE
HERRAVEESR -

RESHHEARKNME(HE]) EENB@E
BRROERATRTE » AR AR BEME A BARL
EERE - PEEZRENBESRDEFEMEAR
AAEM B WMRABREEN BN - e R
DEEFEAREZTEEFIRE - WETHEHER
EE R P BB AR E A 50% @ BRI
BEBETRHEE  LERETRERE L—
FRENEBRE)  TAEBEACEITEIRS

HitFEREBE()AMHE  DEELAAHMNER
AR EENRRERER AR BAETHRR
BERNOEENEZE  (\ARRRZBIE A
A2 AR RS A i A B S AR A R B AT RO B AD ¢ R (i)
PEFERMBEARREESEIFTRERR S
FREEAEROEM -

ERREERAREEEFERERERERES
AEE2INEHROE L Z5 -
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

FEBRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —ZL - —F+ A =+—HIEFE

2021 2020
—E-—-F ETF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
PET FHET FHT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KT
Profit before taxation BR B A8 16,287 46,086
Adjustments for: SHEE
Share of result of associates DR E AR EE 21 (70,126) (59,304)
Share of result of a joint venture DE—HeELEEE 22 83 (214)
Finance costs BB A 10 14,416 20,688
Amortisation of intangible assets T B B 20 40,254 41,769
Depreciation e
— property, plant and equipment  — ¥1% - & MR E 16 97,148 108,427
— right-of-use assets — FRAREE 17 3,616 6,017
— investment properties — REME 18 4,048 2,176
Impairment losses on goodwill EEREEE 19 96,531 176,000
(Reversal of) Provision for M - BB K&
impairment losses on property, BB (B )
plant and equipment 18 8,16 (27) 27
(Reversal of) Loss allowance on Z 5 & E M U GRIE
trade and other receivables et EEREREE
and contract assets, net o () F8E 9 (2,486) 2,267
Interest income F EUA 7 (5,230) (4,488)
Gain from changes in fair value BARBENAEBR
of financial assets at fair value MR A BEFA
through profit or loss (“FVPL”) BRI HWemEE
NREEEHKE 8 (285) (132)
Gain on disposal of an associate R R AR S 8 (4,116) -
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  BE&
plant and equipment B =00 G 8 (1,760) (1,024)
Gain arising from early termination 2RI IFFHE S 4
of lease contracts EErues 8 - 8)
Government grants for acquisition — WEE¥IZE - BE K&
of property, plant and R BT B
equipment 7 (3,325) (2,079
(Reversal) Recognition of (=) ERPRE
write-down on obsolete FEMOR
inventories 11 (3,409) 4,678
Unrealised exchange gains, net REIE SRR (4,082) (160)
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —L - —F+ A =+T—HIEFE

2021 2020
—E--F T FHF
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
B aE FHET FHT
Changes in working capital: LELEE
Inventories FE (2,586) 50,628
Trade receivables g S rEEIE 162,071 75,497
Contract assets BHEE (27,912) 64,941
Other receivables, prepayments H b e FRTE - AR KB
and refundable deposits NARERT & 12,157 (26,694)
Trade payables B 5’ RIE 35,792 (25,763)
Other payables and accruals H b FE R R R E 33,679 3,607
Cash generated from operations IR E IS 390,738 482,942
Income taxes paid B ATSH (14,476) (81,575)
Interest paid 2SS F) A - (20,305)
Net cash from operating RETHELRSFERE
activities 376,262 381,062

202153 HEERBRAF]
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

FEBRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —ZL - —F+ A =+—HIEFE

2021 2020
—E-—-F ETF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
PET FHET FHT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEH
Interest received B F B 5,230 4,488
Dividend received from an B — R & A FIUER AR B
associate, net of withholding tax (FNBRTEIFL) 72,992 55,566
Government grants for acquisition — WEWME - WE &EE
of property, plant and equipment MU B & - 1,338
Acquisition of property, plantand ~ WBEW % - BE R EE
equipment and intangible assets AR A (142,747) (188,675)
Proceeds from disposal of HEBE AR FTEIIE
an associate 4,116 -
Proceeds from disposal of HEWE - BEL
property, plant and equipment RABFTE R 49,642 39,921
Collection of rental deposits WEHEZES - 690
Placement of pledged bank FEERMRITHER
deposits (11,321) (49,865)
Withdrawal of pledged bank REREEFRITHER
deposits 14,703 45,700
Purchase of financial assets BERAABET ABR
at FVPL WEeRLEE (55,424) (116,816)
Redemption from financial assets ~ BRIIZ AR EET AEZR
at FVPL MeEmEE 55,709 116,948
Net cash used in investing RETEFERREFE
activities (7,100) (90,705)
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

AN Ao —1
GERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —L - —F+ A =+T—HIEFE
2021 2020
—E--F ZZT-EFF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
P5E FHET FHT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES AEEE
Dividends paid EAREE, 15 (156,789) (299,936)
Interest paid EAFE (14,806) -
New bank borrowings raised HIBRITEE 482,685 644,019
Repayment of bank borrowings BRRITEE (561,548) (513,030)
Repayment of lease liabilities EBEHEaE (972) (3,840)
Repayment of advance from EERE —HHBAR
a non-controlling interest of FEVERR e TR R B
a subsidiary - (5,998)
Net cash used in financing REEEFERARS T
activities 36 (251,430) (178,785)
Net increase in cash and ReRkBRELEHEER
cash equivalents B HEEE 117,732 111,572
Cash and cash equivalents BREMYNRERES
at the beginning of £EEA
reporting period 315,391 198,440
Effect of foreign exchange rate NS BE SR B B2 &
changes 7,227 5,379
Cash and cash equivalents at REHMKRRENESEE
the end of reporting period, HE > KRBITESR
represented by bank BRES
balances and cash 440,350 315,391
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —ZL - —F+ A =+—HIEFE

GENERAL

Litu Holdings Limited (formerly known as Birilliant Circle
Holdings International Limited) (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 11 November
2008 as an exempted company with its shares listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its ultimate controlling
party is Mr. Cai Xiao Ming, David (the “Controlling
Shareholder”). The address of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in the corporate information section to the 2021 annual
report of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) are engaged in
provision of the printing of cigarette packages,
manufacturing of paper packaging materials,
manufacturing of laminated papers, sales of radio
frequency identification (“RFID”) products, printing of
packages and decoration matters, research and
development on printing technology, wholesale, import
and export of the packaging products and other related
Services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is different from the
Company’s functional currency of Renminbi (“RMB”). The
directors of the Company adopted HK$ as presentation
currency. For the convenience of the consolidated
financial statements users, the consolidated financial
statements are presented in HK$, as the Company’s
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —L - —F+ A =+T—HIEFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Companies Ordinance. The consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand,
unless otherwise indicated.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a basis consistent with the accounting
policies adopted in the 2020 consolidated financial
statements except for the adoption of the following new/
revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group and
effective from the current year.

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs
The Group has applied, for the first time, the following
new/revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group:

Amendments to HKAS 39,
HKFRSs 4, 7, 9 and 16

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions Beyond
30 June 2021

2.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —ZL - —F+ A =+—HIEFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(continued)
Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRSs 4, 7, 9 and 16:
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

The amendments address issues that might affect
financial reporting when a company replaces the old
interest rate benchmark with an alternative benchmark
rate as a result of the interest rate benchmark reform (the
“Reform”). The amendments complement those issued in
November 2019 and relate to:

° changes to contractual cash flows — a company
will not have to derecognise or adjust the carrying
amount of financial instruments for changes required
by the Reform, but will instead update the effective
interest rate to reflect the change to the alternative
benchmark rate;

o hedge accounting — a company will not have to
discontinue its hedge accounting solely because it
makes changes required by the Reform, if the
hedge meets other hedge accounting criteria; and

o disclosures — a company will be required to
disclose information about new risks arising from
the reform and how it manages the transition to
alternative benchmark rates.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any

significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —L - —F+ A =+T—HIEFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 16: Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions Beyond 30 June 2021

The amendments exempt lessees from having to
consider individual lease contracts to determine whether
rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of
the Covid-19 pandemic are lease modifications and allow
lessees to account for such rent concessions as if they
were not lease modifications. It applies to Covid-19-
related rent concessions that reduce lease payments due
on or before 30 June 2022. The amendments do not
affect lessors.

These amendments shall be applied for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2021 with earlier application
permitted. The Group has elected to early adopt the
amendments in the current year. In accordance with the
transition provisions therein, the amendments have been
applied retrospectively by the Group recognising the
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as
an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
earnings (or other component of equity, as appropriate)
and therefore the comparative information has not been
restated.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any
significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted
by the Group is set out below.

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements is historical cost,
except financial assets at FVPL, which are measured at
fair values as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

2.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —ZL - —F+ A =+—HIEFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and all of its
subsidiaries. The financial statements of the subsidiaries
are prepared for the same reporting year as that of the
Company using consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balance, transactions, income and
expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Non-controlling interests are presented, separately from
owners of the Company, in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and within equity in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets in event
of liquidation, are measured initially either at fair value or
at the present ownership instruments’ proportionate
share in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. This choice of measurement basis
is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Other
types of non-controlling interests are initially measured at
fair value, unless another measurement basis is required
by HKFRSs.

Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to the owners of the
Company and the non-controlling interest even if this
results in the non-controlling interest having a deficit
balance.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —L - —F+ A =+T—HIEFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in ownership interest

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the
Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest determined at the date when control is lost and (i)
the carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interests at the date when control is lost. The amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to the disposed subsidiary are accounted for on
the same basis as would be required if the parent had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Any
investment retained in the former subsidiary and any
amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary are
accounted for as a financial asset, associate, joint venture
or others as appropriate from the date when control is
lost.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 EZE = —

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. The Group reassesses whether
it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the elements of
control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position which is
presented in note 44 to the consolidated financial
statements, interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less accumulated impairment loss. The carrying amount
of the investments is reduced to its recoverable amount
on an individual basis, if it is higher than the recoverable
amount. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control of those
policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the arrangement. A joint arrangement is
an arrangement of which two or more parties have joint
control. Joint control is a contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. The
Group reassesses whether it has joint control of an
arrangement and whether the type of joint arrangement
in which it is involved has changed, if facts and
circumstances change.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE -~ —

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Associates and joint ventures (continued)

The Group’s investments in associates or joint venture
are accounted for under the equity method of
accounting, except when the investment or a portion
thereof is classified as held for sale. Under the equity
method, the investment is initially recorded at cost and
adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition changes in
the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment. Except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee,
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses when the Group’s share of losses of the investee
equals or exceeds the carrying amount of its interest in
the investee, which includes any long term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the investee.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of an associate or a
joint venture is measured as the excess of the cost of
investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquired
associate or joint venture. Such goodwill is included in
interests in associates or joint ventures. On the other
hand, any excess of the Group’s share of its net fair value
of identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
investment is recognised immediately in profit or loss as
an income.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investees, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —ZL - —F+ A =+—HIEFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
measured at the excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the fair value of any previously held equity interest in
the acquiree (if applicable) over the acquisition date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed of the acquired business.

Goodwill on acquisition of business is recognised as a
separate asset and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, which is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. For the purpose of impairment test and
determination of gain or loss on disposal, goodwill is
allocated to cash-generating units (“CGU”). An
impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed.

On the other hand, any excess of the acquisition date
amounts of identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed of the acquired business over the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree (if applicable) and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquiree, if any, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as an income from bargain
purchase.

Any resulting gain or loss arising from remeasuring the
previously held equity interests in the acquiree at the
acquisition-date fair value is recognised in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income, as appropriate.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —L - —F+ A =+T—HIEFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or
loss during the year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property, plant and
equipment, other than construction in progress, over their
estimated useful lives as set out below from the date on
which they are available for use and after taking into
account their estimated residual values, using the
straight-line method, at the following rates per annum.
When parts of an property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the items is
allocated on a reasonable basis and depreciation
separately:

Buildings Over the shorter of
the term of lease or
30 years

Leasehold improvements 3 years

Plant and machinery 5-20 years

Furniture and office equipment 3-5 years

Motor vehicles 4-5 years

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost,
less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include any
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management and,
for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready
for their intended use.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —ZL - —F+ A =+—HIEFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests
of properties which includes both leasehold land and
building elements, the entire consideration is allocated
between the leasehold land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values at initial recognition.
To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented
as “right-of-use assets” in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included
in profit or loss in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property, the
Group accounts for such property in accordance with the
policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment” up
to the date of change in use, and the cost and
accumulated depreciation of that item at the date of
transfer are transferred to investment property for
subsequent measurement and disclosure purposes.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —L - —F+ A =+T—HIEFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties that are held by
owner or lessee, to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include properties held for a currently
undetermined future use.

Investment properties also include leased properties
which are being recognised as right-of-use assets and
subleased by the Group under operating leases.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
investment properties over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account of their estimated residual
value, using the straight-line method, at the following rate
per annum:
Buildings 30 years
If an item of investment property becomes owner-
occupied property because its use has changed as
evidenced by commencement of owner-occupation, the
cost and accumulated depreciation of that item at the
date of transfer are transferred to property, plant and
equipment for subsequent measurement and disclosure
purposes.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the property is derecognised.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —ZL - —F+ A =+—HIEFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are
carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful lives
are reported at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis
as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset are measured at the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognised in profit or loss in the period
when the asset is derecognised.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —L - —F+ A =+T—HIEFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of
an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

e the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

e the intention to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

e the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

e how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;

e the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and
to use or sell the intangible asset; and

° the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally generated
intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any),
on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 EZE = —

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments and on a trade date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group’s contractual rights to future cash flows from
the financial asset expire or (i) the Group transfers the
financial asset and either (a) it transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset,
or (b) it neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset but
it does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises the
financial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement
and an associated liability for amounts it may have to

pay.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —L - —F+ A =+T—HIEFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and measurement

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without a
significant financing component) are initially recognised at
their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
carried at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets. Such
trade receivables are initially measured at their transaction
price.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i)
measured at amortised cost; (ii) debt investment
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”); (i) equity investment measured at
FVOCI; or (iv) measured at FVPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the Group’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual
cash flow characteristics. Financial assets are not
reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless
the Group changes its business model for managing
them, in which case all affected financial assets are
reclassified on the first day of the first annual reporting
period following the change in the business model.

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract in which a
host is an asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 are not
separated from the host. Instead, the entire hybrid
contract is assessed for classification.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —ZL - —F+ A =+—HIEFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and measurement (continued)

1)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVPL:

(@ it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

(b) its contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising
from impairment, derecognition or through the
amortisation process are recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost
include trade receivables, other receivables and
refundable rental deposits, pledged bank deposits
and bank balances.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —L - —F+ A =+T—HIEFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and measurement (continued)

2)

Financial assets at FVPL

These investments include financial assets that are
not measured at amortised cost or FVOCI, including
financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL,
financial assets resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 applies and financial
assets that are otherwise required to be measured
at FVPL. They are carried at fair value, with any
resultant gain and loss recognised in profit or loss,
which includes any interest earned on the financial
assets.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it
is:

(@) acquired principally for the purpose of selling it
in the near term;

(b) part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that are managed together and for
which there is evidence of a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking on initial
recognition; or

(c) a derivative that is not a financial guarantee
contract or not a designated and effective
hedging instrument.

Financial assets are designated at initial recognition
as at FVPL only if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise from
measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the
gains or losses on them on different bases.

The Group’s financial assets mandatorily measured
at FVPL include structured deposits.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —ZL - —F+ A =+—HIEFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities

Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when
the liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value
plus, in the case of financial liabilities not carried at FVPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue
of the financial liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables,
other payables and accruals, amount due to a non-
controlling interest of a subsidiary and bank borrowings.
All financial liabilities, except for financial liabilities at
FVPL, are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method, unless the effect of discounting
would be insignificant, in which case they are stated at
cost.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE -~ —

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit losses (“ECL”) on financial assets that are
measured at amortised cost and contract assets to
which the impairment requirements apply in accordance
with HKFRS 9. Except for the specific treatments as
detailed below, at each reporting date, the Group
measures a loss allowance for a financial asset at an
amount equal to the lifetime ECL if the credit risk on that
financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial asset at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses
(i.e. the present value of all cash shortfalls) over the
expected life of the financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of
the difference between the contractual cash flows that
are due to an entity under the contract and the cash
flows that the entity expects to receive.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument while 12-month ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events on a financial instrument that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —ZL - —F+ A =+—HIEFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(continued)

Measurement of ECL (continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on the following
one or more shared credit risk characteristics:

(@ past due information

(b) nature of instrument

(c) size and industry of debtors

(d) length of customer relationship

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk
and loss since initial recognition. The resulting changes in
the loss allowance are recognised as an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the financial instrument.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that the
Group may not receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full if the financial instrument that meets any
of the following criteria.

(@) information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group); or

(b) there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —L - —F+ A =+T—HIEFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(continued)

Definition of default (continued)

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort. In particular, the following information is taken into
account in the assessment:

° the debtor’s failure to make payments of principal or
interest on the due dates;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

° actual or expected changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have or
may have a significant adverse effect on the
debtor’s ability to meet its obligation to the Group.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 EZE = —

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk
(continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date.

Low credit risk
A financial instrument is determined to have low credit
risk if:

(@) it has alow risk of default;

(b) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term;
and

(c) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

As detailed in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements, pledged bank deposits and bank balances
are determined to have low credit risk.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —L - —F+ A =+T—HIEFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(continued)

Simplified approach of ECL

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group
applies a simplified approach in calculating ECL. The
Group recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL
at each reporting date and has established a provision
matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific
to the debtors and the economic environment.

Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired include
observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower.

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event.

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider.

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

()  the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a
deep discount that reflects the incurred credit
losses.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —ZL - —F+ A =+—HIEFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(continued)

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group
has no reasonable expectations of recovering the
contractual cash flows on a financial asset in its entirety
or a portion thereof. The Group has a policy of writing off
the gross carrying amount based on historical experience
of recoveries of similar assets. The Group expects no
significant recovery from the amount written off. However,
financial assets that are written off could still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s procedures
for recovery of amounts due, taking into account legal
advice if appropriate. Any subsequent recovery is
recognised in profit or loss.

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

Revenue recognition

Rental income

Rental income under operating leases is recognised
when the assets are let out and on the straight-line basis
over the lease term. Variable lease payments that depend
on an index or a rate are initially measured using the
index or rate at the commencement date and
subsequently adjusted when such index or rate changes.
Such payments are recognised as income on the
straight-line basis over the lease term. Other variable
lease payments are recognised as income in the period
in which the event or condition that triggers those
payments occurs.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —L - —F+ A =+T—HIEFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Dividend income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using
the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired,
the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the assets while it is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount net of loss allowance)
in case of credit-impaired financial assets.

Revenue from contracts with customers within
HKFRS 15

The Group is engaged in printing and manufacturing of
cigarette packages and related materials, manufacturing
of laminated papers and sales of RFID products.

Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods
promised in a contract with a customer and identifies as
a performance obligation each promise to transfer to the
customer either:

(@) agood (or a bundle of goods) that is distinct; or
(b) a series of distinct goods that are substantially the

same and that have the same pattern of transfer to
the customer.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —ZL - —F+ A =+—HIEFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within
HKFRS 15 (continued)

Identification of performance obligations (continued)

A good that is promised to a customer is distinct if both
of the following criteria are met:

(@) the customer can benefit from the good either on its
own or together with other resources that are readily
available to the customer (i.e. the good is capable of
being distinct); and

(b) the Group’s promise to transfer the good to the
customer is separately identifiable from other
promises in the contract (i.e. the promise to transfer
the good is distinct within the context of the
contract).

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a promised good
(i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred when
(or as) the customer obtains control of that asset.

The Group transfers control of a good over time and,
therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and
recognises revenue over time, if one of the following
criteria is met:

(@ the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

(b) the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset (for example, work in progress) that the
customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; or

(c) the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —L - —F+ A =+T—HIEFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within
HKFRS 15 (continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (continued)

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the
Group satisfies the performance obligation at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the promised
asset. In determining when the transfer of control occurs,
the Group considers the concept of control and such
indicators as legal title, physical possession, right to
payment, significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset, and customer acceptance.

Revenue from the printing of cigarette packages and
manufacturing of laminated papers with no alternative
use are recognised over time.

Revenue from the sales of RFID products and
manufacturing of paper packaging materials are
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the distinct goods or service.

For revenue recognised over time under HKFRS 15,
provided the outcome of the performance obligation can
be reasonably measured, the Group applies the input
method (i.e. based on the proportion of the actual inputs
deployed to date as compared to the estimated total
inputs) to measure the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation because there
is a direct relationship between the Group’s inputs and
the transfer of control of goods or services to the
customers and reliable information is available to the
Group to apply the method. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of the costs incurred until
such time that it can reasonably measure the outcome of
the performance obligation.

The principal input applied in the input method for printing
of cigarette packages and manufacturing of laminated
papers is costs incurred.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —ZL - —F+ A =+—HIEFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Contract costs

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs
that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a
customer that it would not have incurred if the contract
had not been obtained.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing
all incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs
would otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or
loss within one year.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

If the Group performs by transferring goods or services to
a customer before the customer pays consideration or
before payment is due, the contract is presented as a
contract asset, excluding any amounts presented as a
receivable. Conversely, if a customer pays consideration,
or the Group has a right to an amount of consideration
that is unconditional, before the Group transfers a good
or service to the customer, the contract is presented as a
contract liability when the payment is made or the
payment is due (whichever is earlier). A receivable is the
Group’s right to consideration that is unconditional or
only the passage of time is required before payment of
that consideration is due.

For a single contract or a single set of related contracts,
either a net contract asset or a net contract liability is
presented. Contract assets and contract liabilities of
unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE -~ —

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currency translation

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency (foreign currency) are
recorded in the respective functional currency(ies) (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchange prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are re-translated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the re-translation of monetary
items, are included in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of exchange reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).

Exchange differences relating to the retranslation of the
Group’s net assets in RMB to the Group’s presentation
currency HK$ are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
reserve. Such exchange differences accumulated in the
exchange reserve are not reclassified to profit or loss
subsequently.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 EZE = —

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost, which comprises all costs of
purchase and, where applicable, other costs that have
been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition, is calculated using the weighted
average cost method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period of the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Impairment of non-financial assets, other than
goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess
whether there is any indication that its property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, intangible assets and
right-of-use assets may be impaired or impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may be
reduced. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated, based on the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the smallest group of assets that
generates cash flows independently (i.e. CGU).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —L - —F+ A =+T—HIEFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets, other than
goodwill (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a CGU is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or CGU is reduced to its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised
as an expense immediately.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying
amount of the asset or CGU that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in
prior years. Reversal of impairment loss is recognised as
income in profit or loss immediately.

The accounting policy for recognition of the impairment
loss for goodwill is stated in the accounting policy for
goodwill in the earlier part of this note.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income
on the temporary investment of the specific borrowings,
that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing
costs are recognised as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 EZE = —

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
when it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation, and when a reliable estimate of the
amount of obligation can be made. Expenditures for
which a provision has been recognised are charged
against the related provision in the year in which the
expenditures are incurred. Provisions are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate. Where the effect of the time value
of money is material, the amount provided is the present
value of the expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation. Where the Group expects a
provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all attaching conditions will be complied
with.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group would purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income in
the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE -~ —

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Government grants (continued)

Government grants related to income that are receivable
as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support
to the Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable. Government grants relating to compensation
of expenses are deducted from the related expenses,
other government grants are presented under “other
income” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease at inception of the contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption to short-
term leases and low-value asset leases. Lease payments
associated with these leases are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease
components from lease components, and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a
lease contract as a lease separately. The Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price
of the lease component.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —ZL - —F+ A =+—HIEFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)

As lessee (continued)

Amounts payable by the Group that do not give rise to a
separate component are considered to be part of the
total consideration that is allocated to the separately
identified components of the contract.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments from lessees and included in
the cost of right-of-use assets.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability at the commencement date of the lease.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which
comprises:

(@) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

(b) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

(c) any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

(d) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying asset,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —L - —F+ A =+T—HIEFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)

As lessee (continued)

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement
of the lease liability. Depreciation is provided on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and
the estimated useful lives of the right-of-use asset (unless
the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to
the Group by the end of the lease term or if the cost of
the right-of-use asset reflects that the Group will exercise
a purchase option — in which case depreciation is
provided over the estimated useful life of the underlying
asset) as follows:

Over the term of lease
3 years

Leasehold lands
Leased properties

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date of the contract.

The lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability comprise the following payments for the
right to use the underlying asset during the lease term
that are not paid at the commencement date:

(@ fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

(b) variable lease payments that depend on an index or
arate;

(c) amounts expected to be payable under residual
value guarantees;
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 EZE = —

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leases (continued)

As lessee (continued)

(d) exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

(e) payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising an
option to terminate the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, or where it is not readily
determinable, the incremental borrowing rate of the
lessee.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability
and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made.

The lease liability is remeasured using a revised discount
rate when there are changes to the lease payments
arising from a change in the lease term or the
reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase option.

A lease modification is accounted for as a separate lease
if:

(@ the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

(b) the consideration for the lease increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

LITU HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

—Ft+A=t—HULFE

TESTBEE)

HE (&)

EREBEA (E)

(d) MAEESERETSITEBER
B AITTEZEERNER
53

€ HUIEREMIR(NEHEHEHR
MASETERLLEENERE
) o

HEMNRERHERRE 2O KAEA
KEEELIEZETNERERAR
AHPIEEEEFFEITIIR o

Hig  BEENEEENRREES
ERFEY BB EEEARBKRE
XN EEERNAEHEERE -

EHEHEER LR ENRIEARE
EERAERTETEREEEEME
BHENRBELERE  BERLE
RIMBRER BN EHERE -

WEHZRENATER  BIENEHRIES
BEENHEEAR

(@) fEXUBBIBINMGEM —HIIA LR
HEEENRENABRAHERD
PR

(b) TEERBIEINEFEEIZINMNEEHD
B ERA N 2B BIRED
BBEABRURMZE 2B RE
75 o



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —L - —F+ A =+T—HIEFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)

As lessee (continued)

When a lease modification is not accounted for as a
separate lease, at the effective date of the lease
modification,

(@)

the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract on the basis of relative stand-
alone price as described above.

the Group determines the lease term of the modified
contract.

the Group remeasures the lease liability by
discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate over the revised lease term.

for lease modifications that decrease the scope of
the lease, the Group accounts for the
remeasurement of the lease liability by decreasing
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset to
reflect the partial or full termination of the lease and
recognising any gain or loss relating to the partial or
full termination of the lease in profit or loss.

for all other lease modifications, the Group accounts
for the remeasurement of the lease liability by
making a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-
use asset.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —ZL - —F+ A =+—HIEFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)

As lessor

The Group classifies each of its leases as either a finance
lease or an operating lease at the inception date of the
lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the underlying asset. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a
lease contract as a lease separately from non-lease
components of the contract. The Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component
on a relative stand-alone price basis.

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

As lessor — operating lease

The Group applies the derecognition and impairment
requirements in HKFRS 9 to the operating lease
receivables.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion
of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —L - —F+ A =+T—HIEFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefits schemes
and the Mandatory Provident Fund are recognised as
expenses when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Termination benefits

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the
earlier of when the Group entity can no longer withdraw
the offer of the termination benefit and when it recognises
any related restructuring costs.

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the year as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, any deferred tax arising from initial
recognition of goodwill; or other asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss is not recognised.

The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is recovered or the liability is settled, based on
tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses
and credits can be utilised.
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eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —ZL - —F+ A =+—HIEFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising

on investments in subsidiaries, associates and a joint
venture, except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in

the foreseeable future.

Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is @ member of the key management personnel
of the Group.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each holding
company, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity
is a member).

(i)  both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 —Z - —F+_A=+—HILFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
Related parties (continued)
(b)  (continued)

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group. If the
Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employers are also related to the Group.

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a holding company of the entity).

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

(@) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes
subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes
subsidiaries of the joint venture.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —ZL - —F+ A =+—HIEFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s chief operating decision maker
(“CODM”) for the purpose of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines
of business and geographical locations.

Individual material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —L - —F+ A =+T—HIEFE

3.

FUTURE CHANGES IN HKFRSS

At the date of authorisation of the consolidated financial

statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new/

revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group and are

not yet effective for the current year, which the Group has

not early adopted.

Amendments to HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use'

Amendments to HKAS 37 Cost of Fulfiling a Contract!

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework'

Annual Improvements to 2018-2020 Cycle!

HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates?

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction?

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets

and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

8 The effective date to be determined

The directors do not anticipate that the adoption of the
new/revised HKFRSs in future periods will have any
material impact on the results of the Group.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —ZL - —F+ A =+—HIEFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATION
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and
judgements are made by the management in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
They affect the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses, and disclosures made. They are assessed
on an on-going basis and are based on experience and
relevant factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Where appropriate, revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period of
revision and future periods, in case the revision also
affects future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
Revenue recognition from sales of products with no
alternative use over time

Under HKFRS 15, control is transferred over time when
the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date. Significant judgement is required in determining
whether the terms of the Group’s contracts with
customers in relation to printing of cigarette packages
and manufacturing of laminated papers with no
alternative use create an enforceable right to payment for
the Group. The Group has considered the relevant local
laws that apply to those relevant contracts and opinion
from external legal counsel. Based on the assessment of
the Group’s management, the relevant sales contracts
create an enforceable right to payment after taking into
consideration the legal opinion, contract laws and the
legal and regulatory environment in the PRC. Accordingly,
contracts relating to printing of cigarette packages and
manufacturing of laminated papers with no alternative
use is considered to be performance obligation satisfied
over time.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE -~ —

4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATION
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible
assets

Determining whether goodwill and intangible assets are
impaired requires an estimation of the recoverable
amounts of the CGUs to which goodwill and intangible
assets have been allocated, which is the higher of the its
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal. The
value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate
certain assumptions, including the discount rate, terminal
growth rate, gross margin and sales growth rate in order
to derive the net present value of the discounted future
cash flow model. Where the actual future cash flows are
less than expected, or changes in facts and
circumstances which results in downward revision of
future cash flows or upward revision of discount rate, a
material impairment loss or further impairment loss may
arise. Furthermore, the estimated cash flows and
discount rate are subject to higher degree of estimation
uncertainties in the current year due to uncertainty on
how the Covid-19 pandemic may progress and evolve.
The fair value less costs of disposal requires the Group to
estimate certain assumptions and adoption of
appropriate valuation methodology. Owing to inherent
risk associated with estimations in the timing and
magnitude of the future cash flows and fair value less
costs of disposal, the estimated recoverable amount of
the CGUs may be different from its actual recoverable
amount and profit or loss could be affected by accuracy
of the estimations.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of
goodwill and intangible assets were HK$797,504,000
(2020: HK$885,408,000) and HK$32,279,000 (2020:
HK$72,351,000) respectively. During the year ended 31
December 2021, impairment loss on goodwill of
HK$96,531,000 (2020: HK$176,000,000) was provided.
Details of the recoverable amount calculation are set out
in notes 19 and 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATION
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Loss allowance for ECL

The measurement of loss allowance for trade and other
receivables and contract assets under HKFRS 9 requires
judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount
and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when
determining impairment losses and the assessment of a
significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are
driven by a number of factors, such as risks of default,
losses given default, changes in which can result in
different levels of allowances.

The Group’s ECL calculation on trade and other
receivables and contract assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and losses given
default. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculations, based on credit risks of the debtors or
comparable companies in the market, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the
end of each reporting period. It has been the Group’s
policy to regularly review its models in the context of
actual loss experience and adjust when necessary.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of the
Group’s trade receivables amounted to HK$364,539,000
(2020: HK$512,533,000). Impairment losses of
HK$6,944,000 (2020: HK$9,243,000) has been
recognised for the Group’s trade receivables as at 31
December 2021. Further details, including the key
assumptions and inputs used for impairment calculation
of the Group’s trade receivables are set out in notes 24
and 39 to the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —L - —F+ A =+T—HIEFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATION 4. EREEHFTRHEE &)
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued) A THBERENEFERR(E)
Allowance for inventories FERE
The Group’s management reviews the condition of REREHR  AEEEERNTFE
inventories, as stated in note 23 to the consolidated ARG (RAR A B IS TR T 5E 23 A&k ) &
financial statements, at the end of each reporting period, AR APRE « R B R Y E EY
and makes allowance for inventories that are identified as GFEFREE ASELKEEERE
obsolete, slow-moving or no longer recoverable. The TEERN  W2REHMEKRRT
Group carries out the inventory review on a product-by- TIGAR N ET IR B -
product basis and makes allowances by reference to the
latest market prices and current market conditions.
REVENUE 5. &=
() Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with ) EFENVEDE
customers
2021 2020
—E--F ZETHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Printing and manufacturing of ENfRI| J S8 25 02 B 5
cigarette packages and N ARk
related materials
— Printing of cigarette packages — ENfIEE % 871,855 1,133,380
— Manufacturing of paper — RS PEM R
packaging materials 168,076 94,366
Manufacturing of laminated papers &Li&E#E A 4% 13,523 35,637
Sales of RFID products SHE 5T BRI 2 o 105,398 76,156
Total revenue Pl 1,158,852 1,339,439
20215 FH NEERBRAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —ZL - —F+ A =+—HIEFE

5. REVENUE (continued) 5. W& &)
() Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with () EFEFEHWEDE(E)
customers (continued)
Timing of revenue recognition Uy 22 7 R B

Printing and Manufacturing

manufacturing of paper Manufacturing Sales of
of cigarette packaging  of laminated RFID
packages materials papers products Total
BRI R B B HEMNE
EERE  KEENE  HEELM ABIER - H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAEL THET TAL TEL TEL
Year ended BE-3--F
31 December2021 +=F=1+-H
LEFE
Atapoint in time BRI - 168,076 - 105,398 273,474
Over time FERS R 871,855 - 13,523 - 885,378
871,855 168,076 13,523 105,398 1,158,852
Year ended Bz-3-%F
31 December2020 +=A=1+-H
l:3:4
Ata point in time NG - 94,366 - 76,156 170,522
Over time BEls 1,133,380 - 35,537 - 1,168,917
1,133,380 94,366 35,537 76,156 1,339,439
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —L - —F+ A =+T—HIEFE

5. REVENUE (continued) 5. W& &)
() Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with () EFEXNWEIE(E)
customers (continued)
Geographical market BT

Printing and Manufacturing

manufacturing of paper Manufacturing Sales of
of cigarette packaging  of laminated RFID
packages materials papers products Total
IR B B HEMNE
EERE  GEEME  HERLSH ABIER - H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tix Tix ThET THER TR
Year ended BE-E--%
31 December2021 +=F=1+-H
HEE
The PRC H 871,855 168,076 13,523 79,555 1,133,009
Others (Note) Eh (fzE) - - - 25,843 25,843
871,855 168,076 13,523 105,398 1,158,852
Year ended Bz-3-%F
31 December2020 +=A=+-H
LFE
The PRC w 1,133,380 94,366 35,537 68,421 1,331,704
Others (Note) Hib (fH5) - - - 7,735 7,735
1,133,380 94,366 35,537 76,156 1,339,439
Note: Others included the Republic of Indonesia, the United et Bt EMEErmaLmMmE - 5|
States of America and the Republic of Korea. BERBRAERE -

202153 HEERBRAF]
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —ZL - —F+ A =+—HIEFE

5. REVENUE (continued)

(ii)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

Printing of cigarette packages and
manufacturing of laminated papers

The Group’s contracts with customers for printing
of cigarette packages and manufacturing of
laminated papers are tailor-made based on
customers’ specification with no alternative use to
the Group. Taking into account the contract terms,
the legal and regulatory environment in the PRC, all
contracts provide the Group’s enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date and
hence the revenue is recognised over time.

Under the Group’s standard contract terms, the
customers have no right to return products except
those with quality flaw. The Group generally does
not require the customers to pay in advance. The
customers should settle the trade receivable within
60 to 90 days upon the issue of value added tax
invoice.

A contract asset is recognised over the period
based on the progress towards complete
satisfaction of a performance obligation representing
the Group’s right to consideration because the
rights are conditioned on the Group’s future
performance in delivery of goods. The contract
assets are transferred to trade receivables when the
rights become unconditional. The Group typically
transfers the contract assets to trade receivables
when the goods are delivered to the customers.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —L - —F+ A =+T—HIEFE

5. REVENUE (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers (continued)

Manufacturing of paper packaging materials
and sales of RFID products

Revenue from the manufacturing of paper
packaging materials and sales of RFID products is
recognised when control of the goods has
transferred, being at the point the goods are
delivered to the customers. Delivery occurs when
the goods have been shipped to the customer’s
specific locations.

Under the Group’s standard contract terms, the
customers have no right to return products except
those with quality flaw. The Group generally does
not require the customers to pay in advance. The
customers should settle the trade receivables within
60 to 90 days upon the issue of value added tax
invoice.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers

All the Group’s contracts with customers are for
periods of one year or less. As permitted under
HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to the
remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or
partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2021 and
2020 is not disclosed.

5. W& (&)
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(iii)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —ZL - —F+ A =+—HIEFE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the CODM, for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on types of goods delivered. No operating
segments identified by the CODM have been aggregated
in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments currently
are (i) printing and manufacturing of cigarette packages
and related materials, (ii) manufacturing of laminated
papers and (iii) sales of RFID products. The CODM
considered the Group has three (2020: three) operating
and reportable segments which are based on the internal
organisation and reporting structure. This is the basis
upon which the Group is organised.
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. oEER#E)
Segment revenues and results AR E R EE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and AR B A E B3 0] )& 55 28 & 5 Hy IR
results by reportable segment. wmREEDHT
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-Z-_—-+=-A=+—HBL#HF
E
Printing and
manufacturing
of cigarette
packages Manufacturing Sales of
and related  of laminated RFID
materials papers products Total
BRI R RS
EEAER HESE
TREAH HERAH BRIER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TER TER TET TET
Segment revenue D 1,039,931 13,523 105,398 1,158,852
Segment result DEEE 163,640 (567) 12,408 175,481
Unallocated other income AOREMBA 41,575
Unallocated other net gains FoEE Rk
and losses BRI (104,983)
Unallocated expenses AOEHRY (153,899)
Finance costs BEKA (14,416)
Reversal of loss allowance on B 5 RHMERFIER
trade and other receivables BNEAERERSE
and contract assets, net BEFE 2,486
Share of result of associates HMEBE N EEE 70,126
Share of result of a joint venture A5 —FIA SN ELE (83)
Profit before taxation BRBE AR A 16,287
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —ZL - —F+ A =+—HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. oEER#E)
Segment revenues and results (continued) PR EREE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-_Z-_ZEF+-A=+—HLHE
E
Printing and
manufacturing
of cigarette  Manufacturing Sales of
packages and of laminated RFID
related materials papers products Total
ERl e 33
BREAER HESTA
e A HAER Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T
Segment revenue 7 s 1,227,746 35,537 76,156 1,339,439
Segment result DEEE 257,347 4,929 3,618 265,894
Unallocated other income RAOBEEMKA 46,939
Unallocated other net gains AAEEMER
and losses BETE (173,846)
Unallocated expenses FAERAE (129,464)
Loss allowance ontrade and B 5 R Efth JEUREIE [k
other receivables and BREENERR
contract assets, net REFE (2,267)
Finance costs BERA (20,688)
Share of result of associates PMEBELREE 59,304
Share of result of a joint venture A —FA S EEE 214
Profit before taxation BB AL 46,086
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —L - —F+ A =+T—HIEFE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenues and results (continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

Segment result represents the profit (loss) generated by
each segment without allocation of corporate
management expenses, directors’ emoluments, share of
result of associates and a joint venture, finance costs,
unallocated other income, unallocated other net gains
and losses, loss allowance trade and other receivables
and contract assets, net, amortisation of intangible assets
relating to customer relationship and other unallocated
expenses. This is the measure reported to the CODM for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

All of the segment revenue reported above is from
external customers.

6.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —ZL - —F+ A =+—HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEERE)
Segment assets and liabilities PHEERAE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and NTAREEREERAIREDEE
liabilities by operating and reportable segments: SHEERBED :
Segment assets PHEE
2021 2020
—E--F _T_THF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
Printing and manufacturing ENfml N Bl @ B 2
of cigarette packages and KA@M
related materials 1,305,948 1,402,966
Manufacturing of laminated papers — &iEE A 4K 6,799 28,415
Sales of RFID products 5 5T SRR R E 200,157 206,709
Total segment assets DEEELE 1,512,904 1,638,090
Unallocated property, plant and ROMYE - BFE REHE
equipment 5,093 2,513
Right-of-use assets EREEE 103,347 104,176
Investment properties wEME 55,780 22,305
Goodwill [EES 797,504 885,408
Intangible assets | EE 32,279 72,351
Interests in associates REEE AT AR 455,869 450,364
Interests in a joint venture R—HEEEPENER 8,559 8,414
Deferred tax assets BB EE 5,895 1,333
Rental and other deposits paid ENHERE N HMZES 3,889 2,402
Other receivables, prepayments Hibpelgzr18 « B 5008
and refundable deposits NARER] & 57,013 68,899
Tax recoverable AT Y B R IR 4,271 2,709
Pledged bank deposits EHEFRITER 11,488 14,523
Bank balances and cash RITERKEIRES 440,350 315,391
Consolidated assets REEBE 3,494,241 3,588,878
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Ft-A=+—HBILFE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.

Segment assets and liabilities (continued)

Segment liabilities

7 EE R ()
ABEERAME)
A E

2021 2020
—E--F ZT_TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
Printing and manufacturing of | M RERERE R
cigarette packages and FEREM R
related materials 245,610 202,894
Manufacturing of laminated papers — &liEE S 4 2,616 1,457
Sales of RFID products S ST SRR A o 7,985 9,686
Total segment liabilities DEBRERRE 256,211 214,037
Other payables and accruals HiENZELETER 133,458 102,269
Amount due to a non-controlling &S — R P B A R FEHERR
interest of a subsidiary R T 2,552 2,484
Bank borrowings RITEE 342,428 411,206
Government grants BSfEE 25,931 28,383
Lease liabilities ME&E 333 1,293
Income tax payable FERTFTISHR 10,748 16,503
Deferred tax liabilities EEMIEAG 49,000 42 876
Consolidated liabilities mReaE 820,661 819,051

Segment assets represent certain property, plant and DEHEERZEESBENABLEE R
equipment, trade receivables, contract assets and GIE: %ﬁggma;%% CBE R R -

inventories which are directly attributable to the relevant BEMEWEIE - ANBEURGEES -
operating and reportable segment. Segment liabilities DEE %ﬁ%ﬁ& SER MR SEL N
represent trade payables which are directly attributable to AMED I E 5 EMZIE - 1 Th5t
the relevant operating and reportable segment. These are AREBERIGEHPEREHTIELE

the measures reported to the CODM for the purpose of
resource allocation and assessment of segment

performance.

REREERNFTZE A ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —ZL - —F+ A =+—HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEER#E)
Other segment information HihpBER
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-—S-—F+-A=+-—-HLHE
E
Printing and
manufacturing
of cigarette
packages Manufacturing Sales of
andrelated  of laminated RFID
materials papers products  Segmenttotal  Unallocated Total
e
FERLR HESE
HEiE REEAY BHER AHEE AR &t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TR TEn TErn T

Amounts included in the measurement 5t EABEEFH BEEE
of segment result or segment assets: S ARJRE -

Adaitions to non-current assets (Note) K& 3EENAE (Fish) 104,499 - 17 138,616 4,131 142,747
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH 84,412 989 17,791 103,192 41,874 145,066
Impaiment losses on goodwil BEREEE - - - - 96,531 96,51
Reversal of impairment losses on % BEREEAE

property, plant and equipment ERAR - - = = 27) 21
Reversal of s alowance ontrade ~ Z 3R A U FER &

and other receivables, net ERADFE - - - = (2,522) (2,522)
Loss allowance on contract assets, net 414 EEERERE - - - - 36 36
(Gain on disposal of property, HLENE BER

plant and equipment FEOhE - - = = (1,760) (1,760)
Reversal of recogniion of write-down AR EREM AT

on obsolete inventories (1,678) (900) (831) (3,409) - (3,409)
Provision for ltigation (note 43) FABE (I 49) - - - - 21,200 21,200

Amounts regularly provided tothe ~ FHIRT ELEREE

CODM but not incluced in the REETERNHE

measure of segment result; PREERTARSE -
Interest income HEMA (2,139) (451) (180) (2,766) (2,464) (5,230)
Interest expenses 5 13423 3% 937 14,395 21 14,416
Note: Non-current assets excluded goodwill. iz : ERBEBETBIEHE -

126 LITU HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Notes to the consolidated financial statements
e IS HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —L - —F+ A =+T—HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DIFERE)
Other segment information (continued) HitpHER (2)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-_Z-_ZEF+-A=+—HLE
E

Printing and
manufacturing
of cigarette
packages  Manufacturing Sales of
and related of laminated RFD
materials papers products  Segment total Unallocated Total
EllTleSe
BEAER HESA
BB 2R HhlEm HHEE AR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt
Amounts included in the measurement - 5t EABEEF A BEEE
of segment result or segment assets:  FTAHIAE -
Adaitions to non-current assets (Note)  FEEmEIAE (Mfs) 135,150 4514 60,814 200478 3684 204,162
Depreciation and amortisation TEREHE 94,253 1323 15,120 110,696 47,693 158,389
Impaiment losses on goodwil HEREER - - - - 176,000 176,000
Impairment losses on property, 0% BERREHEER
plant and equipment - - - - 27 27
Loss allowance on trade and B REEYGERE
other receivables, net BRERRE - - - - 2,204 2,204
Loss allowance on contract assets, net A 47E B ESERESE - - - - 4 43
(Gain on disposal of property, HENE BER
plant and equipment FEOhE - - - - (1,024) (1,024)
Gain arising from early termination ~ RAIAHEEADEEHNE
of lease contracts - - - - @ @
Recognition of wite-down BRREREHR
on obsolete inventories 4,067 - 621 4,678 - 4,678
Amounts regularly provided tothe ~ FHRTELEREE
CODM but not included in the RERTERNTE
measure of segmen result; PREERHARSE -
Interest incorne 0N 2,39) (246) (684) (3.324) (1,164) (4,489
Interest expenses flamx 15,305 33 1,298 16,631 4,057 20,688

Note: Non-current assets excluded goodwill.

Miek : ERBEETBIERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —Z - —F+_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. oEER#E)
Revenue from major products and services FEERRRERE
An analysis of the Group’s revenue from its major EEAEETEERMRFKEN S
products and services is set out in note 5 to the &R AR S B IS R&R M55 -
consolidated financial statements.
Geographical information ith & E R
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and REBNEE LB (GEME) K &2
the PRC (country of domicile). %o
Information about the Group’s revenue from external EF§$EIX§9|\*B¥)5H& SR E R}
customers is presented based on the geographical TRBHIETIZZEY] - MAmEYMH
market irrespective of the origin of goods. Information R o *ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%@#mi))éﬁ%ﬁ’\]ﬁ
about the Group’s non-current assets is presented based B DIREEMMIEMLERZT -
on the geographical location of the assets.
Revenue from Non-current
external customers assets (Note a)
REINEBEF U FREBEE (MitFa)
2021 2020 2021 2020
TR -F TTF B -F _T_THF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TET THET TET
The PRC A 1,133,009 1,331,704 1,875,576 1,988,958
Hong Kong &5 - - 4,464 2,471
Others (Note b) H A (fI5EDb) 25,843 7,735 - -
1,158,852 1,339,439 1,880,040 1,991,429
Notes: BT

(@) Non-current assets excluded those relating to deferred tax
assets and interests in associates and a joint venture, in which
the operations of these associates and joint venture are mainly
carried out in the PRC.

(b)  Others included the Republic of Indonesia, the United States of
America and the Republic of Korea.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —L - —F+ A =+T—HIEFE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.
Information about major customers
Details of the customers contributing 10% or more of

DEE

FRETERFNES
EAREEBHE10%HA EHEFEF

#E)

total revenue of the Group are as follows: BT
2021 2020
—E--F ZZT-EF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET TET
Revenue from printing of REERIEERE R
cigarette packages
Customer A Z2EA 364,688 327,566
Customer B ZFEB 171,301 152,732
OTHER INCOME 7. HwA
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Interest income on bank deposits IRITFAF B UA 5,230 4,464
Interest income on rental deposits MEZzeF WA - 24
5,230 4,488
Sales of scrap materials fHE R R 7,556 10,916
Processing fee income MMTEWA 6,778 910
Rental income, net of direct expenses & WA - B EERL 6,275 2,622
Government grants (Note) BSE S (M) 11,559 24,789
Sundry income HETE U A 4,177 3,214
41,575 46,939
Note: Government grants were received from the government of the Hi5E : BURHBIS A E P BB - T2/

PRC mainly as incentives granted by local authority for
encouragement of its business development and innovation
except for an amount of approximately HK$3,325,000 (2020:
HK$2,079,000) which was granted for the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment (as detailed in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements). These grants are accounted for as financial
support with no future related costs expected to be incurred nor
related to any assets.

During the current year, the Group recognised government
grants of approximately HK$nil (2020: HK$1,505,000) in respect
of Covid-19-related subsidies.

ERAEBEGERRKAFMELAER
& MARKEYE - BE MR EmMER
#) #93,325,000% jt( = &£ = T F:
2,079,000#% 7T ) Br 5N (FF18 R AR & M 15 3%
KITFES3) - ZEHBE T ARYIE
BB NG EATAARRMBEAA -
BEEAEESERE -

RAEE - AEEFE Covid-1918RF 2 B
RERRF@EBENEE (=T =FF:
1,605,000/ 7T) °

202153 HEERBRAF]

129



130

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —ZL - —F+ A =+—HIEFE

8. OTHER NET GAINS AND LOSSES

2021 2020
—E--F ETHF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B aE FHET FHT
Net foreign exchange gains HNIE Uy 25 5 5E 6,200 1,095
Gain from changes in fair value 22 A BEFT AIBZEH
of financial assets at FVPL TREEANEE
FEhas 285 132
Gain on disposal of an associate & —EE# = A B H U 21 4,116 -
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BER
plant and equipment Bl 1,760 1,024
Impairment loss on goodwill EEREEE 19 (96,531) (176,000)
Reversal of (Provision for) BOmE - BE KRB
impairment loss on property, B E 1B B ()
plant and equipment 27 (27)
Gain arising from early IRAERIEHEEH
termination of lease contracts  EA4 &)U - 8
Provision for litigation SREARE 43 (21,200) -
Others HAth 360 (78)
(104,983) (173,846)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —L - —F+ A =+T—HIEFE

9. REVERSAL OF (LOSS ALLOWANCE) ON

9. BEENHMEBUREREGNE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND EREEERE (&E) 28
CONTRACT ASSETS, NET
2021 2020
—E- -5 T EF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAET
Net loss allowance reversed U T ZEREEE
(recognised) on: RO (MR ) T8 -
— Trade receivables — B REWEIAE 2,515 (2,127)
— Contract assets — ABE (36) (43)
— Other receivables — HippEU IR 7 97)
2,486 (2,267)

Details of loss allowance assessment for the year ended
31 December 2021 are set out in note 39 to the

RSz T -_—F+-_/F=+—H
HFENEBERETIHFBEIREA

consolidated financial statements. B &R R P EE 39 o
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BLE AN
2021 2020
—sE-—F —E-THF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Interest expenses on bank BITERRBZHF B
borrowings and overdrafts 14,378 20,570
Imputed interest expenses HEEBENHEER S
on lease liabilities 38 118
14,416 20,688
2021FF3H HBEIERABRAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —ZL - —F+ A =+—HIEFE

11. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

This is stated after charging:

11. BREADEF

L THFEFARR LA N B IR E R

2021 2020
—E- -5 —ZT-EF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
ibE=s FET FHT
Staff costs, including directors’ 8 T AN » B 3 2% = H
remuneration
Salaries and other benefits e R HMEF 128,672 170,872
Contributions to retirement RIREFEHEIHER
benefits schemes (@ 11,106 1,448
Contractual termination benefit & 494X 1-7&@ I 15,678 -
Total staff costs BB TR 155,456 172,320
Auditor’s remuneration % BT 3 B 2,100 3,423
Cost of inventories FEKA (o) 779,255 808,612
Amortisation of intangible assets 2 & Y (5t A HE
(included in cost of sales and A AN R 1T RIS )
administrative expenses) 20 40,254 41,769
Depreciation e
— property, plant and equipment — Y% - & M &G 16 97,148 108,427
— right-of-use assets — EREEE 17 3,616 6,017
— investment properties — REMHE 18 4,048 2,176
Total depreciation and e N EAE
amortisation 145,066 158,389
Research expenses i 58,740 75,216
Less: included in cost of sales & : 5f ASHER A (58,740) (74,073)
Included in other expenses FFAHAMAR - 1,143
Direct operating expenses KEEAHESWARNKRE
arising from investment MR BEEEEMX
properties that generated (FrAHE MUY A)
rental income
(included in other income) 13,906 1,183
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11. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 11. BRBADER (#)
Notes: F3E
(@  The increment of contributions to defined contribution retirement (@)  EEHFRAGEIEE NEZERNFAH
schemes was mainly attributable to no exemption of social EffiEReteRBER(ZTFF -
security insurances contributions in the PRC during the year TECEF_AF T -FTFEA— AFE
(2020: an exemption of social security insurances contribution in R EIRIE L)

the PRC from February 2020 to December 2020).

(o) Included in cost of inventories were staff costs, depreciation and ) HTEXABEEIRA - MEREHK
amortisation and reversal of write-down on obsolete inventories PR & 17 & #0OR Bl 9 5Bl 49102,424,000
of approximately HK$102,424,000, HK$95,432,000 and 75 7T~ 95,432,000 7T & 3,409,000 7% JT
HK$3,409,000 (2020: HK$118,071,000, HK$109,195,000 and (= & = £ % :118071,000% 7T -
recognition of write-down of HK$4,678,000) respectively which 109,195,000 & 7T [ #5715l 4,678,000 &
are recognised during the year. L) BERAFERER

12. TAXATION 12. B8
2021 2020
=25 —ZT-ZF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
ibE=s FHET FHT
Current tax HEABIE
The PRC i
Enterprise Income Tax (“‘EIT") SR

(TeF1EH) 3,300 29,575

Overprovision of EIT in BEFELEMSER
prior years FBRERME (6,960) (1,209)
(3,660) 28,366

Deferred tax IEFER I 34

Origination and reversal of EEREOERERE
temporary differences 9,325 8,080
Benefit of tax loss recognised BRI B E B M S - 668
9,325 8,748

Income tax expenses Fri8 iR 5,665 37,114

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided as the AR AEBENFELIERETBEEK

Group’s profits neither arose in, nor derived from, Hong S - I EEHRER BN ST

Kong.
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12. TAXATION (continued)

The PRC EIT is calculated at the applicable prevailing tax
rates from 15% to 25% (2020: 15% to 25%) in the PRC.
Pursuant to the “Enterprise Income Tax Law for Foreign
Investment Enterprises and Foreign Enterprises”, some
PRC subsidiaries, being a High-Tech Enterprise, were
entitled to a reduced EIT rate of 15% for three years from
the date of approval.

Upon the New Tax Law and Implementation Regulations
coming into effect, the PRC withholding income tax is
applicable to dividends payable to investors that are
“non-PRC tax resident enterprises”, which do not have
an establishment or place of business in the PRC, or
which have such establishment or place of business but
the relevant income is not effectively connected with the
establishment or place of business, to the extent such
dividends have their sources within the PRC. Under such
circumstances, dividends distributed from the PRC
subsidiaries, associates and a joint venture to non-PRC
tax resident group entities shall be subject to the
withholding income tax at 10% or lower tax rate, as
applicable. Under the relevant tax treaty, withholding tax
rate on distribution to Hong Kong resident companies is
5%. Deferred taxation has been provided on
undistributed earnings of all subsidiaries and associates
(as detailed in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements).
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12, BIE(#)

PRI SEERIET B EAE R
K% E25%( ZFE-ZFF  15% 2
26%) 5t & - REB(RBEIIEIREDE
MINE R EFERE) - BT EWB
Aal(BEa i) B#FE A e
AEFARRREEEMGERNE
15% S

AR EIEARG A E - P ETE
FISBiEARENE [3EFBERMNT
TEIREENRE  ZFIFFBEER
MBI R P BN I B
5 EL A R B AR A M ok B 1B AR
FAURAER LBzl iR
B EUZERETIRETRRHAR -
REZEBRT  PREMBAR - BE
R REEERN TIHEFEERRN
MEEEETENREEZ10%MHTE
HMAASRBERRBERE (WER) &
o REBERABHKIBE  AEEER
NANE IR BE S 5% KB < &
EHBESRAT AN B QR R E QR
WARDRBFFREE (GBEREEY
T FES4) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —L - —F+ A =+T—HIEFE

12. TAXATION (continued)

12, BIE#E)

Reconciliation of income tax expenses FrER X HAEER
2021 2020
—BZ-F T _TF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
ibE=s FHET FHT
Profit before taxation B 7 BTV A 16,287 46,086
Income tax at applicable tax RERANE25%
rate of 25% (2020: 25%) ZE_FF :26%)
STEMEH (@) 4,072 11,521
Share of result of associates DEHE N R EE (17,531) (14,826)
Share of result of a joint venture 95 —f4& L1 EE 20 (53)
Non-deductible expenses AR X 33,944 54,058
Unrecognised tax losses RERFIEEE 1,943 22
Additional tax benefit on research i} 2% 5 sz Y EE MR 75 71|28
and development expenses (b) (12,961) (11,536)
Deferred tax on undistributed NG DY =N L SN
earnings of the PRC ROIRZ N B R 1B
subsidiaries/associates 8,929 14,878
Tax effect of undistributed EHBIREFEHRD IR
earnings reinvested in BN BE
the PRC not taxable (703) -
Income tax on concessionary rate Z{E = KT ER TSR (5,088) (15,741)
Overprovision in prior years BT FEEERE (6,960) (1,209)
Income tax expenses FRMEHE
for the year 5,665 37,114
Notes: BT

() The applicable tax rate of 25% represents the applicable income
tax rate of the subsidiaries in Shenzhen, Jiangsu, Hubei and
Anhui in the PRC which constitute the substantial part of the
Group’s operation for the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.

(b) Pursuant to the relevant tax rules and regulations, the Group
could obtain additional tax benefit, which is a further 100% (2020:
75%) of certain qualified research and development cost incurred
endorsed by the Shenzhen, Anhui, Jiangsu and Hubei Local
Taxation Administrators.

(@ EABEERRERMRPERY - TE
AL K 22 B B B A B 9 i R TS R B
- MZEWNBRARGAEBEHEEZ-F
TR ZEFF AT —HIEF
ERREDER -

(o) IRBEMEEBRSRAEER  AEBEAES
BHINRIEESE - BERRI - 28 JTE
KL & T B RA R 0] 608 T & B A&
BN AR EEIMO0% ( ZFE=FF : 75%) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —ZL - —F+ A =+—HIEFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the
year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules and the
Companies Ordinance, are as follows:

13. ESRTHARFHREER
E#HES
RIE £ TR AR A RO ER 0 A
EEERITBARFHMAT :

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BEZB--F+t-A-t-ALEE

Contributions
Salaries to retirement
and other Performance benefits
Fees benefits bonus schemes Total
HeRk BIREN
we HipfEAl FARAL aHEMER mE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

TiER TER TiER TR TiERn

Executive directors WTEE

Mr. Chen Xiao Liang Note a) B R 56 £ (M a) - 504 = 18 522
Mr. Huang Wanru (Note f) BEEA () - 588 282 49 919
Mr. Jiang Xiang Yu (Note d) ERRLE (Fia) - 303 = - 303
Mr. Qin Song (Chief Executive) — $UA% A (THUER)

(Note b) (MizED) - 1,667 897 79 2,643
Ms. Zheng Jinghui (Note ¢) BHEL L (fiEc) - 284 282 % 591
Non-executive directors FHTESE
Ms. Li Li FHRL = S - - -
Independent non-executive B TES

directors
Mr. Lam Ying Hung, Andy MERTE 145 - - - 145
Mr. Lui Tin Nang ARELE 145 - - - 145
Mr. Siu Man Ho, Simon BXREE 145 - = i 145

435 3,346 1,461 i 5413
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 13. EERTHARFMRESRR
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID SHES ®)
EMPLOYEES (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_T-_ZET-A=-+-BLEE

Contributions
Salaries to retirement
and other ~ Performance benefits
Fees bengfits bonus schemes Total
T RIRTEN]

e RRM  RERE I 1
HK$000  HK$000  HK§000  HK§000  HK$000
TR T T T TR

Executive directors WTEE
Mr. Cai Xiao Ming, David (Note &) ZE8A% 4 (Fizte) - 15 - 2 17
Mr. Chen Huapei (Note ¢) B A (ie) - 122 297 5 424
Mr. Chen Xiao Liang (Note )~ [R5 55 (i a) - 504 - 18 522
Mr. Huang Wanru (Note f) B (FF) - 366 - I 37
Mr. Qin Song (Chief Executive) ~ $IA% 4 (17525

(Note b) (Ftih) - 1552 870 31 2,453
Ms. Zheng Jinghi (Note ¢) HESL+ (fic) - 366 - 16 362

Non-executive directors FUTES

Ms. Li Li it - - - _ -
Independent non-executive BV FHITEE

directors
Mr. Lam Ying Hung, Andy MEE LS 145 - - - 145
Mr. Lui Tin Nang BReEELE 145 - - - 145
Mr. Siu Man Ho, Simon EYC i 145 - - - 145

435 2,925 1,167 83 4,610
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —ZL - —F+ A =+—HIEFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES (continued)

Notes:

(@)

Mr. Chen Xiao Liang has been re-designated as the chief
executive officer of the Company with effect from 21 January
2022.

Mr. Qin Song resigned from the position as an executive director
and chief executive officer of the Company with effect from 21
January 2022.

Ms. Zheng Jinghui was appointed as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 31 March 2020 and resigned from the
position with effect from 16 July 2021.

Mr. Jiang Xiang Yu was appointed as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 16 July 2021.

Mr. Cai Xiao Ming, David and Mr. Chen Huapei resigned from the
position as executive directors of the Company with effect from
31 March 2020.

Mr. Huang Wanru was appointed as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 31 March 2020.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group. The
independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their services as directors of the
Company.

Mr. Qin Song is also the chief executive officer of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above include
those for services rendered by him as the chief executive
officer.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year (2020: HK$nil).

LITU HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

13. EERTHARFHR A R&
S¥ES (#)

fcE

(@)

BRRAEECHATAAARITHRAY - A
ZEIZF A+ —HBER -

PINEEBBHIARBRITEE RITHAE
BB BT _—_F A=+ —HEE
W o

BH2LTRZTAAARNITES A
—E-THEZA-+—BRBREY YOF
FEzBi B2 —F+ A+ A4t
2 o

BHBATEEZERLARNNITES B
—EFEATRAREX -

S TP EILESPIE LE N
#% A-P-BF=A=T—ARLER-

EENELEZER/ARARMNITESE B
TECRE=A=t+—HEEXR-

EXFRATEFME ISR
FAE B AR A R AR B S 55 BR TS
S e EXFIREIEBITE FHOB
IR BREREARBESHORS M
St e

PIRFETRARRINITHRAAE -
EXPE BRI B R ETTER
AR RGBS -

FALEESZHTRARBLKAE
HeTAMen L (—F-FF: F
EBITT) e



Notes to the consolidated financial statements
e IS HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —L - —F+ A =+T—HIEFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 13. EERTHARFMRESRR
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID SHES ®)
EMPLOYEES (continued)

The five highest paid individuals included three (2020:
two) directors of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2021, details of whose emoluments are set
out above. The emoluments of the remaining two (2020:
three) individuals during the year are as follows:

HE_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—B81L#F
B hemadEERE=%(=F=
TF:WE)RRBIES  HEMFS
BN EX - TWE(ZE=FF: =
H)BARKTEEOFHFMHNAT :

2021 2020

—E- -5 —ZT-EF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Salaries and other benefits Fre MEfmEF 2,490 2,837
Contributions to retirement IRRAEFIFT B R

benefits schemes 296 58

2,786 2,895

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals,
excluding three (2020: two) directors, were within the

hEs=HEE(TRE=RA(-F
FE:HE)EF)NHER TIIEE

following bands: A
2021 2020
—E--F —ZT-EFF
No. of No. of
employees employees
EEAH BEA#
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 = % 1,000,000 % 7T - 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 & T 1,500,000 47T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 /& 7T & 2,000,000 7 7T 1 -

HE_ZT-_—FRZZ=-FTF+=A
=+—HALEFE  AfEEHERLAR
AEMES  AEETHREH "R
EREIAERR FEE T EMBM
T UAFEFEEMAREERMARE
B - SERBEHEE -

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors of the Company, the chief executive officer of
the Group, senior management, or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ—ZF—

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

—F+=B=t+-AILFE

14. BREF

The calculation of the basic earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

AREEBANRESRERRNTIZ
TIIgEAE

2021 2020
—E--F ETHF
Earnings 25
Profit for the year attributable to AT E SRR EARZFH
owners of the Company for the RARHEB AEG
purpose of basic earnings FEHMN(FET)
per share (HK$'000) 8,628 8,915
Number of shares R&OEA
Weighted average number of ordinary F AT & F M ERZ T8
shares in issue for the purpose of BT E @A hnE
basic earnings per share ("000) FEHE(TR) 1,567,885 1,567,885

Diluted earnings per share are same as the basic
earnings per share as there are no dilutive potential
ordinary shares in existence during the years ended 31

December 2021 and 2020.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 —Z - —F+_A=+—HILFE

15. DIVIDENDS 15. R E
2021 2020
—B--f —T-FTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Dividends for ordinary shareholders — FRER A IKH AR A7)
of the Company recognised TBARERAR S
as distribution during the year:
2020 final dividend, paid BENZZEZFRERE
at HK10.00 cents per share &R% 10.00 31 156,789 -
2019 final dividend, paid ENZZE-NFRERE
at HK19.13 cents per share 1913781 - 299,936
156,789 299,936

The directors of the Company do not recommend the
payment of a dividend for the year ended 31 December
2021 (2020: The final dividend of HK10 cents per share
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2020 had
been proposed by the directors and was subject to
approval by the shareholders in the annual general

meeting).

L1081 -
RE_LHME) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —ZL - —F+ A =+—HIEFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y% - BERRE
Furniture
Leasehold Plant and and office Motor  Construction
Buildings  improvement machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
BFHE
BT BEHE HEREE BOZRE AE ERIR @t

HK000  HK§O000  HKEOOD  HKBOO0  HKSO00  HKBOOD  HKSO00
TER TETL TET TER TETL TEL TER

Recondliation of camying amount ~ BREELE - #2-2-FF
—year ended 31 December 2020 +ZA=t-RI%E

At the beginning of the reporting period 5555 £347] 332,535 4591 339,817 20,234 9,165 83,999 790,341

Additions AE 1,463 - 66,609 5279 40 130,086 203,477
Transfer from construction in progress EEBERETR 598 - 16,250 112 - (16,960) -
Disposdls e - - (33971) (3354) (750) (822 (38,897)
Depreciation e (23,409) (3,028) 68782) (11,121) 2,087) - (108427)
Impairment loss HEER - - - (21) - - (27)
Exchange differences ERER 20,821 128 22,029 1,639 346 11,067 55,925
At the end of the reporting period REEHR 332,008 1,686 341,952 12,662 6,714 207,370 902,392

Reconciliation of carrying amount BREEHE - HEZ-8--%
-year ended 31 December 2021 +=A=t+-RALEE

At the beginning of the reporting period 75 25 #347] 332,008 1,686 341,952 12,662 6,714 207,370 902,392
Additions HE 3,286 3,680 59,486 1,693 438 74,264 142,747
Transfer from construction in progress BEBEETR 66,666 12,026 23,842 5,020 (991) (106,563) -
Transfer to investment properties BRORENE (36,437) - - - - - (36,437)
Disposdls e (42) - 44,300 (3292) [224) - (47882)
Depreciation e (24,430) 982) 63.209) (7,279 (1,248) - (97,148
Reversal of impairment loss REERED - - - 27 - _ 07
Exchange differences ERER 9,09 210 8,671 244 125 5197 28,542
At the end of the reporting period  RE&HK 350,146 16,620 326,418 8,975 4814 180,268 887,241
At 1 January 2021 RZE--%-A-A
Cost A 581,496 8,941 823,048 67,313 15,891 07370 1,704,059
Acoumulated depreciation and ZIHTERRESE

impaiment losses (249.488) (7255 (481,096) (54,651) 9,177 - [B01667)
Net carrying amount REFE 332,008 1,686 341,952 12,662 6,714 207,370 902,392
At 31 December 2021 RZBZ-%+ZA=1-H
Cost A 556,032 17,867 869,727 36,619 17,367 180268 1,678,780
Accumulated depreciation and ZIHTERAESE

impaiment losses (206,786) 1240 (543309 (07,644) 12559) - (1915%9)
Net carrying amount FEFE 350,146 16,620 326,418 8,975 4814 180,268 887,241
The Group’s buildings are located in the PRC which is REBEREFUNFE - #HER505F -

under a lease term of 50 years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &

2B _—F+-A=+—"HILFE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. FREEE
Leasehold Leased
land properties Total
HE+# HEYE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET FHET
Recongiliation of carrying amount RHEHE - HE_T_ZF
- year ended 31 December 2020 +t-A=+—HIEE
At the beginning of R # )
the reporting period 98,743 4,853 103,596
Lease modification MEEE] - 412 412
Depreciation nE (2,277 (3,740) (6,017)
Termination of leases miriE - (334) (334)
Exchange differences fE N = 6,438 81 6,519
At the end of the reporting period RIEHR 102,904 1,272 104,176
Reconciliation of carrying amount [REEYE — 2 =-S=—F
-year ended 31 December 2021 +=A=+—HIEE
At the beginning of R # )
the reporting period 102,904 1,272 104,176
Depreciation e (2,643) 973) (3,616)
Exchange differences bE N ZFE 2,775 12 2,787
At the end of the reporting period R #% HK 103,036 311 108,347
At 1 January 2021 R-ZE-—F—H—H
Cost FAR 123,424 7,764 131,188
Accumulated depreciation 2T E (20,520 (6,492) (27,012)
Net carrying amount REHE 102,904 1,272 104,176
At 31 December 2021 R-E--&+=-HF=+-H
Cost AR 126,800 933 127,733
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (23,764) (622) (24,386)
Net carrying amount REFE 103,036 311 103,347
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17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

The leasehold land represents the land use rights situated
in the PRC. At the end of the reporting period, the
remaining lease term of the lands are within the range
from 31 to 42 years (2020: 32 to 43 years).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group leases
factory premises (2020: office and factory premises) for
its daily operations. Lease contracts have fixed term of 3
years (2020: 2 to 3 years) without extension and
termination options. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain different terms and
conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing
the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group
applies the definition of a contract and determines the
period for which the contract is enforceable.

Details of the interest expenses on lease liabilities and
lease maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in
notes 10 and 30 respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for
staff dormitories. At the end of the reporting period, the
portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the portfolio of
short-term leases to which the short-term lease expense
disclosed as below.

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —ZL - —F+ A =+—HIEFE

17. FRAEEE @)

FAE LI P B A i (s A4 -
REREEAR - THba9eR T BN T 31
BUFE (- E LT 30FF434F) o

RBEHR AEELSEEEEHRE
BENE(—E_ZFF  BRELREF
Y=E) HEANNETEHRRF/IF(=
F_FF 2FF3F) TRIEH R
RRAEIEFE - MEIRFIRERIB I E
BETE  ETES TNRGR KRG -
EERY LA T AT BEERE - K
SEERAONTERLHETES QAR
BIEITHVHAR o

HEaGlN eI MNHERENEE
FIHI B 2B 0 BIE RS B 5
FMEFE10 %30 °

AEBEHREIEE L EHEE -
R|EMR EHHEHEHES REHE
ERXR TXHENSHEEASHE
% o

2021 2020
—E--F CZZTZETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
Lease payments: HERK :

Short-term leases recognised in RIBRERNEHHEE
profit or loss 2,382 2,042
Low-value assets KEEBEEE 116 28
Expenses recognised in profit or loss R IBZMER AR 2,498 2,070
Lease payments on lease liabilities HEABEMNHEERNK 1,010 3,958
Total cash outflow for leases HEREMERTE 3,508 6,028
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 —L - —F+ A =+T—HIEFE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued) 17. FRHEEE @)

Commitments under leases

In July 2021, a subsidiary of the Company entered into a
lease contract with EAGLE SWIFT LIMITED (“EAGLE
SWIFT”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability and controlled by the
Controlling Shareholder, for a term of 1 year with total
contract sum of HK$1,134,000. The lease commenced
from 1 September 2021 with an option to terminate the
lease with 3 months’ notice. The lease does not contain
any renewal option. The transaction was exempted from
continuing connected transaction according to the
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in view of de minimis
transactions.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group was committed to
HK$756,000 (2020: HK$nil) for the above-mentioned
short-term lease.

Restrictions or covenants

Most of the leases impose a restriction that, unless the
